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JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT AND
FARMERS

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 1985

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE

OF THE COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,
Council Bluffs, IA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m., at Iowa
Western Community College, Council Bluffs, IA, Hon. Barney
Frank (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Barney Frank, Howard C. Nielson, and
Jim Lightfoot.

Also preseni: Stuart E. Weisberg, staff director and counsel; and
Ken Salaets, minority professional staff, Committee on Govern-
ment Operations.

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN FRANK
MT. FRANK. Good morning.
This is a hearing of the Subcommittee on Employment and Hous-

ing of the Government Operations Committee of the U.S. House of
Representatives.

The House of Representatives divides jurisdiction among subjects
essentially three ways. This committee, the Government Oper-
ations Committee of which we are a subcommittee, has what is
known in Washington as oversight jurisdiction; that is, we do not
have in this subcommittee the mandate to actually draft and
report to the House legislation on this subject. We have a mandate,
however, to supervise the operation of programs which have been
enacted and funded by Congress.

This subcommittee has as its jurisdiction essentially the Depart-
ments of Labor and Hcusing and Urban Development and related
agencies.

The purpose of this hearing, therefore, is to examine the Job
Training Partnership Act. We have had a series of hearings on this
act which is one of the major operational programs of the a part-
ment of Labor. Our particular focus today is the extent to whichthat act isor as we believe has been the case until very recent-
lyis not .:,?.rving the agricultural sector of our economy.

The purpose of the Job Training Partnership Act is to assist
people in making transitions in an economy such as ours where
there will always be areas that are growing, and obviously all of us
hope that growth will be the predominant pattern. But there are

a)
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also inevitably transitions. There are areas that grcw, there are
areas that may stagnate, there are areas that shrink.

The Job Training Partnership Act as enacted by Congress recog-
nizes that and recognizes an obligation on the part of the Federal
Government to help those who have lost jobs through no fault of
their own through the course of changing patterns of employment
in the country.

It has unfortunately been seen almost exclusively until recently
as affecting the nonagricultural sectors of the economy. It is very
clear to anyone who is familiar with the agricultural situation that
sadly there are changes going on in the agricultural area that are
adversely affecting some very hard-working decent people who
again find themselves, through no fault of their own perhaps,
unable to continue in their chosen occupation.

The purpose of this hearing is to look at what the Job Training
Partnership Act has been doing in this area and if, as most of us
are inclined to believe, the answer is that it has not been doing
enough, to look at what could be done to improve it administrative-
ly or through the actual drafting of legislation, if such would be
needed.

While funding would not be within the jurisdiction of this sub-
committee, on tne other hand it has been our experience that when
this subcommittee or others develop well thought-out, bipartisanly
supported recommendations, we can sometimes succeed in chang-
ing the direction of the administration and it may well be that it is
not necessarily legislative changes that are needed, although some
may be needed, but a difference in emphasis administratively to be
able to improve things. That will be what we will be doing pretty
much.

We have not chosen this area wholly randomly. Mr. Lightfoot
has been a very active member of the subcommittee and a con-
structive member of the subcommittee and is the one who brought
the attention of this subcommittee to the problems that exist with
regards to the Job Training Partnership Act in agriculture. So we
are here at the suggestion of Mr. Lightfoot.

We thank him for helping us focus on this and he will be within
a few minutes making his own statement.

I will now call on the ranking minority member, the senior Re-
publican of the subcommittee who is also very much concerned
through his own district with the plight of the agricultural sector
of our economy, the gentleman from Utah, Mr. Nielson.

Mr. NIELSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am very happy to be here. I have had a warm spot in my heart

for Iowa since 1969 when our car burned up and the people of
Grinnel, IN, and the fire department was very kind to us. It was at
night, the Saturday night before Labor Day. Everything was closed.
All we had left was a few things, so we went to the motel with a
couple of bags of groceries and things for the baby who was young,
about 6 months old at that time, and we were a motley-looking
crew at that time. The Iowa people were very understanding and
we appreciate that very much.

I am happy to be here in Congressman Lightfoot's district to hold
this hearing. I have a rural background myself. I was raised on a
farm. I have about a 48,000-square-mile district. It is large, about
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like Jim's is, and has a lot of livestock, sheep, turkeys, and, of
course, some grain products, not like Iowa, but quite a few, diversi-
fied agricultural products.

It is very important that the JTPA as successor to the old CETA
organization work as a partnership, as implied in its title the Job
Training Partnership Act. It has, Congressman Frank has said,
been useful primarily for industrial areas to retrain people from
the so-called smokestack industries such as steel and automobiles,
those which have cut back on employment.

I think it is appropriate to look at it in terms of agriculture be-
cause many people are leaving the farms, not able to stay in agri-
culture because of declining prices and other factors over which
they have no control.

I want to thank Jim, Congressman Lightfoot, for suggesting the
hearing and hosting it here and I appreciate his staff picking me
up at the airport and all the kind things they have done for us.

$ k nu
iiig statement of Mr. Nielson followsl
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STATEMENT OF THE
HONORABLE HOWARD C. NIELSON

EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS

COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA

MR. ChAIRMAN, I AM PLEASED THAT WE WERE ABLE TO TRAVEL HERE TO THE
HOME DISTRICT AND GPEAT STATE OF OUR DISTINGUISHED COLLEAGUE. Jim
LIGHTFOOT, TO HOLD THIS HEARIrG TO EXAMINE SOME OF THE PROBLEMS THE
STATES HAVE ENCOUNTERED IN ADMINISTERING THE JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIF
ACT TO MEET THE NEEDS OF FARMERS. THE COLD WEATHER REMINDS ME OF MY
OWN STATE OF UTAH, AND WHEN YOU ADD THAT TO THE FINE HOSPITALITY
PROVIDED BY THE PEOPLE OF COUNCIL BLUFFS. I CAN'T HELP BUT FEEL
RIGHT AT HOME.

I A. FEEL RIGHT AT HOME WITH THIS ISSUE, FOR AS YOU KNOW, MY
DIS1RICT IS PREDOMINANTLY RURAL. I AM FAMILIAR WITH THE PROBLEMS
THAT FACE IOWA FARMERS, BECAUSE THESE ARE SOME OF THE SAME PROBLEMS
THAT CONFRONT MANY OF MY OWN CONSTITUENTS. IN ,DDITION, HAVING BEEN
RAISED ON A FARM MYSELF, I AM PERSONALLY AOUAINTED WITH THE HARDSHIP!
AND HAZARDS THAT COME WITH MAKING A LIVING OFF THE LAND.

THOUGH WE ARE ACTUALLY THE GUESTS THIS TIME AROUND, I WOULD LIKE TO
WELCOME OUR WITNESSES THIS MORNING, AND SAY THAT I AM LOOKING FORWARI
TO A FRANK AND INFORMATIVE DISCUSSION ON THIS SUBJECT.



Mr. FRANK. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Iowa.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to ask that the record be kept open so that anytional statement3 to be submitted might also be entered int(r ecord.
We have a statement from Congressman Bedell and SeiHarkin, and one from Des Moines Area Cc 'rnunity 'nllegealso a statement fro.n Senator Gr-,cley. would liAc tothose statements in the ro
Mr. FRANK. We will Jnes from Des Moines Area Connity College and Senator Grassley in the record.
Mr. Bedell and Senator Harkin have representatives whopresent their statements.
If there is no objection to that procedure, we will put those irrecord
[The statements follow:]
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Des Moines Area Community College is a state-supported community college

serving 11 counties in central and western Iowa. The College district

contains approximately 20 percent of the state's population and serves

metropolitan, urban, and rural areas. To ensl:re service and opportunity, the

College has developed facilitie,. in urban Ankeny, a community of 16,000;

Des Moines, a city of 250,000; Boone, a rural community of 13,000; and

Carroll--a rural community of 10,000 residents some 90 miles from Des Moines

Area Community College's Ankeny administrative center.

Des Moines Area Community College has completed an assessment of need for

rural as,listance in Iowa and has developed the following prognosis regarding

Iowa's fa,-m crisis.

1. Iowa will lose 12,400 farms.

2. Iowa will have 24,800 dislocated farmers and farm families seeking

new jobs.

3. The loss of these farms and farm families will result in a loss of

992 rural businesses.

4. This will result in a loss of 24,800 rural -town- jobs.

S. This will create a rural unemployment loss of 49,000 people in need

of jobs, retraining, or relocation.

6. The cost of one year of retraining and relocating those individuals

will be in excess of $1.25 million.
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These statistIcs are chilling. All availahle resources are desperately needed

to address this sudden and severe economic downtur: to help people adjust to

emerging economic realities.

However, current regulations and guidelines established for the JTPA program

do not allow most of our rural population access to JTPA programs and

services. Regulations greatly limit farmer participation due to the

establishment of unrealistic income guidelines. These guidelines ignore the

fact that current income checks are made payable hoth to a bank or .inother

lending agency and to the farmer. Thus, income from a salo et goods goes to

pay off existing notes, mortgages, etc., and, therefore, does not actually

provide a net income to the farmer or the farm population. Irent

regulations would have a f.rmer declare hankruptcy hefore hecmting eligible

for JTPA programs and services. This unfair situation must he changed. The

Region Xlf Council of Government's JTPA Director in Carroll, Iowa, also

concurs with thls assessment.

Des Moines Area Community College's research indicates that the three most

trouhled counties in Area Xl are Audubon, Guthrie, and Carroll, along with

adjacent Greene County.

Thus, our new program entitled FARM/CAP (Career Assessment Program) represents

a new initiative for helping area farmers, agriculturalrelated workers, and

spouses.

Various Des Moines Area Community College staff members have established an

ongoing relationship with an area farm support group, the Greenbrier Area Farm

Support Group, centered north of Bagley. Iowa, in Guthrie County. Staff

members have participated in Sunday evening meetings, listened carefully, and

have offered to assist in ways the group would consider helpful. In this
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spirit, the staff has eked with Pastor Alt Hill, Creenbrier United Methodist

Church, in developing a response sheet to f,l,ther dcteral. 'collp members'

needs. A separate document entitled "Career Assessments Progi. el Ii be

mado availrhi the committee as part of the record.

The Ptogram Is de,i--ed ro partIety.d,, in cla:ifv, and then acting

on lite/care,r ,ped through outreach activities, per3onal and

farm fl .-la: farmer-lender mediation, Life/Career workshops,

and lob referral , ci placement services.

Career and Finan.tial Assessment

Outreach activity will be initiated by a FARM/CAP staff member through a

respoese sheet administered during the first meeting of a support group.

Individurls will have an opportunity to indicate whether or not they are clear

about th r career goals and whether they need a farm financial assessment.

The FARM/CAP staff member will distribute a form to those desiring a farm

financial assessment with explanation regarding its complet-n. A date to

visit the family on their farm site will he established.

A Program farm Financell Advisor will visit the farm family and, through a

sensitive, non-directive approach, involve family members in an analysis of

financial data. A computer printout will be generated and given the family

that details key financial probl.sn areas. Program participants will always

have ultimate responsibility for final decision making.

The main purpose of the analysis is to help the farmer answer the question,

'Is fanning an option?" If it is, new approaches to financial planning and

manage-,ent will surely result in better operation. Too, farmer-lender
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mediation services will be made available. If farming in deemed nnt an

option, the FARM/CAP Career Development Workshop will be recommended an a

starting place.

The heart. of FARM/CAP will be cne-week (half-day) life/career planning

workshops. Warknhop sessions will be organized Ln help participants assess

their iadividual strengths, interests, values, transferrable work skills, and

career/job options. Currently, nine FARM/CAP workshops are being established

throughout Area XI from December 1985 - April 1986. These workshops will be

later4porsed with ,A1.2-week (Cour Jay) Job Search AssisLanee sessions geared

toward developing interviewing skills and resumes. This activity will be

sponsored in cooperation with Job Service of Iowa.

A primary concern is that program gonls be met, in part, through utilizing

available community/area resources, such as those offered by Job Service of

Iowa and TSB Extension Offices, and .y avoiding a duplication of services.

This cooperation, we think, conserves valuable time and financial resources.

Furthermore, FARM/CAP has been designed Co be "transported" Co other area

settings and personnel. We thIsk collaboration with various area agencies and

groups is important when designing a wide array of options fnr program

participants.

Greenbrier area farm leaders have pulled twenty-five farm neighbors together

in a warm support group. Every Sunday evening at 7:30 p.m. they meet at. a

centtalized location in a farmer's large machine shed. They come from rural

Scranton, Rippey, Bagley, Jefferson, Guthrie Center, and Jamaica.

Group members labor under news that this particular time is similar to that of

1929; just a short time before die big fall. They are hanging on, wishing to

stay on the farm, but not knowing if they should sell out now before they

14
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-lose it U. Some already have. This terrible uncertainty is their secret

nemesis. Yet their meetings arc positive and beneficial as issues are

discussed with options generated f6r consideration. However, qnestions always

remain as does personal decision-making.

There is i:ood for more community farm support groups. Croup lea0ership

memlwrs have good communieation skills hut they need assistance in reterral

techniques, peer counseling helping skills, group processes, information

regarding how to keep their group focused on constructive issues, and how to

spot serious human problems. The PARM/CAP Program will host two major

conferences dealing with support group leadership.

Both individuals and groups need immedlate assistance. At this time, however,

JTPA Title IIA funding is essentially nonexistent for farmers. And this is

tragic.

To help farmers, DeS Moines Area Community College highly recommends that

sub-committee and full committee members review and rewrite JTPA Title IIA

eligibility guidelines for greattr flexibility to assist that portion of our

work force that has contributed so greatly to the development of our great

nation, the American farmer, agricultural related worker and spouse.

Thank you.



12

1 ll : i I .

I I 1 I I oN I .11 I N
11 1: ON (IOVI OP: ISA I IONS, ON I ri. rlI

I NI 1S111 l' Acr IN SI IA.1 S.C, AND or I

Cony,r.!,111:111 1. i flit foo t , Sir. Cha liii cssr i Niel! on, I

would like t o ny slat iancot Icy copoax-nd tttg yen for hold i 05
this hearing to examine the role of the Job Tiaining rdit xxx slit p
Act in serving farmers and agricultutal co:sr:tint t

Spc.x',.,0; as a faraer, as well as a faim state Senator, I

fito, 1.eliove iLat 0111- filst pciolity should be to lee',
fatners in business. There is more at stake in farming
than jnst "making a living"; faiming is a way of life.
we mIst also face up to the sad fact that for semi: faimihg is
no longer a vi ible option. Where that is the we need
to esamine those programs ax the federal and state ICV0715
:hat i_an offer :!!!--H::!nc,.' te farmers in aking the diffi,nit
trdosition to a new way of life. The Job Training Partnetship
Act, which provides job training, placer.ent assistance, and other
services to help persons who have been displaced by economic
change or who need asssistance in developing marketable skills.
is an important part of our efforts TO assist persons who have
heen adversely affected hy the crisis in the farm economy.

Iowa wds the first State to allow fatmers to participate in
the :oh Training Pattnership Act under Fitle III, which
serves displt.ced workers. This ..ction was taken by Governor
Franstad in Joly of 1984, nine months before the Department
of Labor officially declared that farmers could he eligible wider
Title Ill. Governor Franstad and the Iowa Office of Plnnning
and Programming should be commended for taking the initiative
to begin using the displaced worker program to serve farmers
Who have lost their farms due to economic conditions. In the
current program year, I believe that somewhere in the neighborhood
of 250 farmers have been assisted by the Job Training Partnership
Act in Iowa. In addition to assistance under the regular program,
the Iowa Office of Planning and Programming has recently received
a $500,000 graltt to develop a program tailored specifically for
farmers. The Office of Planning and Programming hopes to serve
an additional 380 to 400 farmers in that program.

Iowa nod some snrrounding states -- Minnesota, Nebraska, and
Yansas have been very active io trying to make the Job
Training partnership Act work for farmers. I think their
efforts have been laudable, but there have been prohlems
along the way.

Pne early problem was that it 1,:as unclear whether fatmers
were even eligible under the displaced worker program. Although the

16
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Melia t rent of 1 ea rd Iji 11.1 t cow 11 , t t-. .1re

0111 r inqing to gain experiunce in xel,ing far ors in
the displaced worker program.

Outreach is one ongoing problcm that has heen indontified by
states that have experience in vorking vith displaced 'airer,,,,
In addition to the nehress of .lob Training rait:le! .hip Act
services for displaced OF financially troubled farmers, they
may be reluctant to admit they are having piehloms and ask

as sistance , State 1, li as 1,, v , with e S t lii F fi in tvin g

farmers, hAVC discovered that on aggtessive outreach ptogiam
is neoJed.

Eligibility rules plesent noother problem far displaced farrers.
In order to be eligible, a farmer must, for all iatents and
purposes, be off the (aim before he can receive assistance
under Title 1.11. Because he has been self omployed, he is nOt
oli0110 for uncmplo)ment insurance income vhile he is in

training, He is thus faced with the pioblom of piocidlog
for himself and his family while he is training for A new
fob,

A third pioblem is that !,011112 sOrvin0F., tiinit As film management
and certain types of counseling, have not been a, lable through
the Joh Training Partnership Act. Another problem, vhich WAS
touched on by Congressman !ight foot in his opening statement,
is ;he need lo improve coordination at all levels.

lova and other midwestern states have been trying to solve these
problems by tailoring programs to meet the needs of farmers
though the use of discretionary money administered by the Secretary
of Labor. The lova program, for example, will include a farm
counselor and offer a full array of training asi counseling
services, coordinated through existing dislocated workor training
programs.

I think that one helpful approach to improving the Joh Training
Partnership Act I. its service to farmers and rural communities
will he to regard programs currently being set up in 101:3,

Minnesota, and Nebraska using discretionary money from the
Secretary of Labor as pilot programs. Thece programs will
plovide valuable experience and provide guidance for policy-
makers in improving the Job Training Partnership Act.

I am also looking forward to examining the testimony of
today's witnesses for guidance.

That concludes my prepared remarks.
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Mr. FRANK. Since there appears to be no objection, we will keep
the record open for a few days to receive other testimony. If
anyone here hears something today that you think requires ampli-
fication and you want to get additional material in, you can submit
it to us, and it will become part of the record. That will give you a
chance to react and help us restrain the people who say, "By the
way, can I say something?"

So we will take any additional comments you have. Yuu will
have at ,east a week to get those to us.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to welcome you and Congressman Nielson to Iowa. I

am glad you agreed to come to Iowa to discuss the role of the JTPA
as it affects this area and dislocated Farmers. I hope we will have a
thorough and frank discussion with the panelists on ways we can
better accommodate farmers under the Job Training Partnership
Act.

As most of you know, farm States are facing tough times, and
the challenges to preserve the family farm are great. It is alarming
to see what is happening to our farming communities, to watch our
small towns and cities dry up, and to see our family farms under
stress. I think we must do whatever we can to preserve these
family farms and to ensure that farmers once again can make a
profit in agriculture.

We must provide them with assistance so that they can weather
the economic storm. Unfortunately, some farmers have had no
choice but to leave farming. For them, we must establish a smooth
transition from the farm to another career. And, of course, that is
why we are here today.

For many of these farmers, this is the only thing they have ever
done. They have worked the land for years and while enjoying
some good years in agriculture, they have also lived through some
bad years. But they kept on going. Now, some of them have had to
stop. After farming for 10, 15, maybe even 20 years, they have had
to think about entering into a new occupation.

Many people aren't aware that the skills farmers possess can be
transferred into another career. Farmers are managers, econo-
mists, accountants, and marketers. These are skills which they
need to draw upon everyday to keep their farm operation in busi-
ness. They review the political climate, watch the commodity mar-
kets, know when to buy and sell, analyze all these factors and
make decisions.

As a matter of routine, farmers are their own engineer, mechan-
ic, and agronomistservices which people in the nonfarm sector
pay dearly for on a regular basis. It is clear, farmers are self-suffi-
cient, hard-working people, and have a great deal to offer to the
work force. It should be our goal to ensure that farmers are given
the opportunity to apply these skills off the farm.

The Job Training Partnership Act, the major Federal job retrain-
ing program, has been good for dislocated factory or heavy industry
workers, but has not been as effectively applied for farmers in the
same situation. Admittedly, hundreds of farmers have been helped
through this program, but the rules have been stretched to accom-
modate them.

18
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Presently, State and local agencies are doing a tremendous job at
serving cthe farm communities. However, greater assistance is ne

i
-

essary f we are to meet the growing need for these types of serv-
ices. Local agencies are frustrated because the financial resources
to help the farmers are limited; the guidelines are too sketchy or
too restrictive; and the types of services or training which the
farmer or his family requires are unavailable or they are not avail-
able.

When Congress developed the Job Training Partnership Act in
1982, it was geared to retrain factory workers, not farmers. In 1985,
we need it to i etrain the dislocated farmer. Although JTPA, espe-
cially title III, the dislocated worker program, allows for a great
deal of State discretion in adopting a program to fit the character-
istics of the State, the Federal Government should be more attuned
to the particular problems of the farmers and the farming commu-
nities.

For instance, greater technical guidance by the Department of
Labor is necessary if we are to help dislocated farmers. Rather
than policing the States on how they are administering the JTPA
Program, the Department of Labor should use its expertise and its
resources to help farm States cope with the problems of retraining
farmers. The Department of Labor needs to share its knowledge
with the States.

Second, more title III discretionary money should be targeted di-
rectly to agriculture communities. The current allocation formula
unfairly distributes funding to farm States because of the formula's
inability to measure farm unemployment. Therefore, in order to
compensate for this and to cover the higher costs associated with
serving farmers, more of the Secretary of Labor's discretionary
money under the title III program needs to be distributed to rural
areas.

Third, a coordinated, nonduplicative approach of serving farmers
and their families has to be developed at the local and State levels.
Skill assessment, job training, family counseling, and stress man-
agement are all services which farm families undergoing a change
require. State agriculture and labor agencies, and community agen-
cies have to work together to provide the necessary services to
farm families. In addition, farm States need to continue to build a
network among the States to share information on how each State
is serving rural communitiLs.

We have a lot of issues to discuss today, and I am looking for-
ward to hearing the panelists' testimony. I also have many ques-
tions which I would like to ask. Although there are many positive
things occurring in the communities to assist farmers and their
families, I hope that today's hearing will indicate how we can
better help more farmers through the Job Training Partnership
Act.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for bringing this hearing to
Iowa. As diverse as the locations the three of us represent are, and
it may also be true of our political philosophies, there is a common
thread between the three of us which is that we care about people.
You certainly have taken the lead in that area by bringing us here
today. We appreciate that.

[The opening statement of Mr. Lightfoot follows:]
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HOUSE GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS COMMITTEE'S
SUBCOMmITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING

FIELD HEARING IN COUNCIL BLUFFS, IOWA

OPENING REMARKS OF REPRESENTATIVE JIM LIGHTFOOT
NOVEMBER 15, 1985

Mr. Chairman, Congressman Nielson, I welcome you to Council

Bluffs, Iowa, and I am glad you agreed to come to my district to

discuss the role of the Job Training Partnership Act in serving

dislocate.: farmers. I hope we will have a thorough and frank

discussion with the panelists on ways we can better acco- odatc

farmers under the Job Training Partnership Act.

Farm states are facing tough times, and the challenges to

preserve the family farm are gr,2at. It is alarming to see what

is happening to our farming communities, to watch our small towns

and cities dry up, and to see our family farms under stress. We

must do whatever we can to preserve these family farms and to

ensure that farmers once again can make a profit in agriculture.

We must provide them with assistance so that they can weather the

economic storm. Unfortunately, some farmers have had no choice

but to leave farming. For them, we must establish a smooth

transition from the farm to another career. That's why we are

heie today.

2 0



17

For many of these farmers, this is the only thing they have ever

done. They have worked the land for years and while enjoying

some good years in agriculture, they have also lived tilrough some

bad years. But they kept on going. Now, some of them have had

to stop. After farming for 10, 15, maybe 20 years, they have had

to think about entering into a new occupation.

Many people aren't aware the skills farmers possess can be

transferred to another career. Farmers are managers, economists,

accountants, and marketers. These are skills which they need to

draw upon everyday to keep their '.7arm operation in business.

They review the prlitical climate, watch the commodity markets,

know when to buy and sell, analyze all these factors and make

decisions.

As a matter of routine, farmers are their own engineer, mechanic,

and aoronomist -- services which people in the non-farm sector

pay dearly for on a regular basis. Its clear, farmers are self-

sufficient, hard-working people, and have a great deal to offer

to the work force. It should be our goal to ensure that farmers

are given the opportunity to apply these skills off the farm.
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The Job Training Partnership Act, the major fede-al job

retraining program, has been good for dislocated factory or

heavy industry worker, but has not been as effectively applied

for farmers in the same situation. Admittedly, hundreds of

farmers have been helped through this program. But, the rules

have been stretched to accommodate them.

Pkesently, state and local agencies are doing a tremendous job at

serving the farm communities. However, greater Lssistance is

necessary if we are to meet the growing need for these types of

services. Local agencies are frustrated because the financial

resources to help the farmers are limited; the guidelines

are too sketchy or too restrictive; and the types of services or

training which the farmer or his family requires alze unavailable

or not allowed.

When Congress developed the Job Training Partnership Act in 1982,

it was geared to retrain factory workers, not farmers. In 1985,

we need it to retrain dislocated farmcrs. Although JTPA,

especially Title III, the Dislocated Worker Program, al,jws for a

great deal of state discretion in adopting a program to fit the

characteristics of the state, the federal government should be

more attuned to the particular problems of the farmers and the

farming community.
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For instance, greater technical guidance by the Department of

Labor is necessary if we are to help dislocated farmers. Rather

than policing the states on how they are administering the JTPA

program, the Department of Labor should use its expertise and its

resources to help farm states cope with the problems of

retraining farmers. The Department of Labor needs to share its

knowledge with the states.

Second, more Title III discretionary money should be targeted

directly to agriculture communities. The current allocation

formula unfairly distributes funding to farm states because of

the formula's inability to measure farm unemployment. Therefore,

in order to compensate for this and to cover the higher costs

associated with serving farmers, more of the Secretary of Labor's

discretionary money under the Title III program needs to be

distributed to rural areas.

Third, a coordinated, non-duplicative approach of serving farmers

and their families has to be developed at the local and state

levels. Skill assessment, job training, family counseling, and

stress management are all services which farm families undergoing

a change require. State agriculture and labor agencies, and

community agencies have to work together to provide the necessary

services to farm families. In addition, farm states need to

continue to build a network among the states to share information

on how each state is serving rural communities.
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We have a lot of issue to discuss today, and I am looking

forward tJ hearing the panelists' testimony. I also have many

questions which I would like to ask. Although there are many

positive things occurring in the communities to assist farmers

and their families, I hope that today's hearing will indicate

how we can better help more farmers

Partnership Act.

through the Job Training

Once again, thank you for coming today.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you, and I appreciate that.
We will call our first panel of witnesses, representatives of two of

our colleagues in Congress from Iowa, two who have particularly
labored hard to educate me about agriculture. If they have failed it
is not their fault, bl.,t they have worked very hard.

We have Bonnie Simons representing our former colleague, now
in the Senate, Senator Harkin; and Clayton Hodgson, representing
Mr. Bedell, who was responsible last year for my first extensive
education about Iowa farming because Mr. Bedell was my host for
about a 21/2-day visit to farms in Iowa and he was the first to begin
to focus for me on this and this is a natural evolution for me.

So I ask Ms. Simons and Mr. Hodgson to come forward and make
statements on behalf of our colleagues who are both very, very
strong advocates of justice to the farmer.

Ms. Simons.

STATEMENT OF HON. TOM HARKIN, A SENATOR IN CONGRESS
FROM TIIE STATE OF IOWA, AS PRESENTED BY BONNIE SIMONS

MS. SIMONS. I would like to thank Congressman Barney Frank,
chairman of the Subcommittee on Employment and Housing of the
Government Operations Cummittee and Congressman Lightfoot of
the Fifth District for scheduling this hearing.

Senator Harkin wishes he could be here and feels the topic is ex-
tremely important especially in light of Iowa's economic state.

At this time, I would like to ask that a statement by Senator
Harkin be placed in the record and also that I might briefly go
through the main points of the Senator's remarks.

Mr. FRANK. Without objection, the Senator's statement will be
incorporated in full and you may proceed.

Ms. SIMONS. The points I wish to make are as follows: The Job
Training Partnership Act is a good program which was not origi-
nally set up to deal with farmers. Therefore, farmers trying to par-
ticipate are facing difficulties which must be corrected. These in-
clude, No. 1, the problems farmers face with eligibility require-

2 4
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ments. As title III of JTPA now reads, a farmer must be foreclosed
or ha,Te received a notice before they can participate.

Senator Harkin feels that refort-is are needed in the eligibility
requirements which wculd allow farmers and their families to par-
ticipate in retraining programs before they are completely devas-
tated.

In his testimony, Senator Harkin outlines three suggestions for
reform.

One, the first thing we must do is base the farmer's eligibility on
negative cash-flow, rather than notice of foreclosure.

Two, that a local lender can recommend to JTPA officials a
farmer's need to begin looking elsewhere for financial stability.

Three, if the farmer's loans are conditional and do not allow for
living expenses, the farmer be deemed eligible.

Point two is the need for long-term retraining efforts which
teach the dislocated workers and farmers skills, not simply the
ability to write a resume.

Three, the need to do away with disincentives. Farmers should
be encouraged to participate without the fear of losing other bene-
fits.

Four, the need for a continued coordinated effort between States,
the Federal Government, and participants to continue the commit-
ment to the program.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Harkin follows:]
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`United ,E5tates eScnate
WASHINGTON. DC 20510

STATEMENT OF SENATOR TOM HARKIN November 14, 1985

Mr. Chairman:

12021 114-3234
,102I 113-1004

COI.P,It
AoRiCULTORE

APPROPRIATIONS

SWALL BUSINESS

I am pleased that the Employment and Housing Subcommitt e.? of the

House Government Operations Committee is holding this hearing today,

in Iowa, to focus on a very important issue, the Job Training

Partnership Act and farmers. 'nib is a ve y timely issue; witH family

farmers losing their farms daily, we must provide a safety-net.

Many people wonder what farmers can do once they have lost their farms.

Let me tell you that farmers are some of the most versatile, skilled

workers of our nation. Farmers are mechanics, construction workers,

oricklayers and carpenters all-in-one.

But, farmers still need an organized mechanism to allow them to re-learn

these skills and the ability to translate them in the world off the farm.

BACKGROUND

Throughout their histor.f, federal job-creating programs have had the

often conflicting goals of making permanent improvements in the economic

backbone of the country, while immediately helping people who need jobs.
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A well-known job-creation program was the Works Progress Administration

(WPM, which was set up in 1935. My father was a participant in this

program during the Depression. Participants worked on 600,000 miles

of highways, 125,000 public buildings and 6,000 parks. All told,

eight million workers received help. WPA not only provided the income

these people desperately needed, but it allowed them co maintain their

self-respect and dignity. I :-member my father taking the kith, out

ea Sunday:, to shcw us the work h.:. had been doing, the buildings he had

built.

Nevertheless, the WPA program had its problems. V a,..cLmplished only

half of the goals I spoke of earlier. Although WPA provide3 for

immediate jobs, it did not make permanent ilprovements in f.he economic

backbone of the country.

THD JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT

After a half centv of job creation prngrs, public works programs,

and employment and training programs, in 1992 Congress enacted the

Job Training Partnership Act. The Act created a major new job

training system for economically disadvantaged and dislocated workers,

operated by States and local governments in conjunction with private

business. This law also authorized training programs for specific

target groups such as Native Americans, veterans, and migrants and

seasonal farmworkers.
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Now, the needs of another group must be addressed -- our family farmers.

The original JTPA was not geared tts.,rd retraining farmers. They now

face several obstacles to porticipation in job training programs.

FARMERS AND JTPA

It is difticult for farmers to become eligible for the program until

after they have been foreclosed on. As you know, fars:er!, fall under

Title III of JTPA -- employment and training assistance for dislocated

workers. Title III provides trainino to persons who are out of work

because of "any permanent closure of a plant or facility". In other

words, farmers cannot participate in JTPA with the hope of ,,aving

their farms because by the time they are eligible, they have lost their

farms.

The eligibility requirements must be changed:

1. The first thing we must do is base the farmer's eligibility

on negative cash flow, rather than notice of foreclosure. In this

way, we could catch those farmers before they have nothing.

2. Whe . a local lender recommends that the farmer needs to begin

looking other places for financial support because that lender can no

longer do business with tho farmer, this should be considered when

determining eligibility.

2 8
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3. If a situation exists where the farmer is receiving condi-

tional loans with no funding avai1abl i living expenses, this too

should be examined when aetermining eligibility.

These three suggestions do not represent the mil,: ways to deal with

this problem, but :aerely point out possibilities. However, I do

believe the need to address the eligibility requirements is crucial.

Even before eligibility is a concern, farmers must know about the

program opportunities and feel compelled to participate. As we all

know, Iowans are proud people who do not like to ask for assistance.

However, the re-training programs are set up to be used by farmers.

Farmers should know these re:,ources exist and feel comfortable using

them.

After a farmer does find out about the progran, decides to participate

and is found to be eligible, the program must give the dislocated

worker something valuable. The Labor Department believes that dis-

located workers in Title III programs are generally more interested in

job search assistance than in lengthy retraining programs. However,

I believe farmers and other dislocated workers want to have the option

to learn a skill, not simply tauaht to write a resume, only to run

around looking for jobs that they are not qualified for. I believe

we must offer more. Congress intended the Job Training Partnership
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Act to train youths and unemployed and dislocated workers skills so

they can re-join the workforce.

In fact, this year the states did not spend all the money they were

given under Title III of JTPA. The main reason for this is that they

provided less expensive services. For the 1985 program year, Congress

appropriated $222.5 million. The Senate Appropriations Committee, of

which I am a member, suggested a fund'ng level of $100 million for

Title III. However, both House and Senate Appropriations Committee

reports state that they expect carry-over balances in the program to

maintain activities at their current operation level. Until December

13, the program is funded by a continuing resolution.

As a member of the Appropriations Committee, I wrote a letter to the

Chairman of the Labor, HHS Subcommittee, Senator Weicker, and the

Ranking Democrat, Senator Proxmire, asking that funding levels for JTPA

remain at least at current services levels. In addition, I asked for

report language which directs the Secretary of Labor -- when allo-

cating discretionary funds -- to give special attention to programs

that would retrain workers in rural areas and give farmers, their

spouses, and other agriculture-related workers skills which would allow

them to reenter the labor force.

Title III of JTPA has the resources, but they need to be used more
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efficiently. One of the first changes needed is to allow dislocated

workers, especially farmers, to participate in re-training programs

before they have lost everything. Then, the program must be re-tailored

to provide for long-term improvements in the economic infra-structure

of Iowa. we must use the Job Training Partnership Act to re-train

our farmers, to teach them skills which would allow them a chance to

work for an extended period of time, at a meaningful job. That is

what Congress intended, the best long-term approach for farmers and

for the economic stability of Iowa.

Finally, we must not penalize farmers, or others, for participating in

job training programs. As it stands now, farmers must choose whether

to feed their familie.i, or lose their food stamps by participating in

the Job Training Partnership Act.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, I believe there are three immediate needs for farmers

and re-training. First, we must reform eligibility requirements so

our farmers do not have to face complete devastation before they -- or

their families -- are able to find alternative means of support.

Second, we must give them real re-training possibilities. This needs

to be twc-tiered, we must provide quick, short-term training to

develop the worker, the community and Iowa. Finally, we must support

the need for re-training programs. Together, Congress, the states and

the dislocated workers must work to rebuild our nation, particularly

the rural areas which have been devastated by our agriculture economy.
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Mr. FRANK. Mr. Hodgson.

STATEMENT OF HON. BERKLEY BEDELL. A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF IOWA, AS PRESENTED BY
CLAYTON HODGSON
Mr. HODGSON. I am Clayton Hodgson. The statement I read is

Mr. Bedell's statement:
Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for allowing me to have my statement read. I

am sorry that a prior commitment prevents me from attending, and I want you to
know I appreciate this opportunity to present some of my concerns in regard to the
dislocated farmer. I commend you for this examination of how the Job Training
Partnership Act can better serve the needs of our dislocated farmers.

Here in the Midwest, we are coming to view the seriousness of the agriculture
economy as a normal way of lifewe face it each and every day. It will get worse,
not better. This past year the JTPA Title III dislocated worker programs were a
godsend to our dislocated farmer seeking a new way of life. Unfortunately, this job
is just beginning. With this coming winter, we are going to be overrun with farmers
who are awaiting the completion of their last b-lrvest. We have to be ready to assist
them.

I have checked with some of the Service Delivery Areas in the Sixth Congression-
al District and I find them anticipating the needs and willing to tackle this chal-
lenge. However, past experience points out several weak areas.

Funding is a major problem, of course. Appropriations for JTPA Title III pro-
grams passed the House of Representatives on October 2nd with a $121 million re-
duction for fiscal year 1986. It is anticipated that the 1985 level of enrollments will
be maintained due to the carryover of a large amount of unspent funds from fiscal
year 1985. The Department of Labor has testified that this carryover is the result of
JTPA finding that the average cost of retraining a worker under this program is
turning out to be lower than originally anticipated. However, we are also finding
that the dislocated farmer's needs are far different from the dislocated worker from
industry.

There are several reasons why our farmers need more service before they are
ready to enter the job market. First, there is the severe emotional impact not only
of facing unemployment, but in many cases of leaving land which has been in their
family for generations. Most of our farmers have worked the land all of their lives
and have no identifiable skills for other walks of life, and it takes longer to identify
their additional talents and skills and retrain them. It is also a problem of attitude
adjustment: from being their own boss to learning basic principles of employee-em-
ployer relationships. They have no verifiable record of employment and are finding
tough competitors in experienced workers from industry. Finally, JTPA is finding
that the bulk of these farmers are in the 50-to-60-year age group, the most difficult
age for both retraining and rehiring.

Unlike dislocated workers from industry, when our farmers lose their land, their
need is immediate. They have no severance pay. They cannot draw unemployment.
They must obtain immediate employment or seek public assistance. It is quite ironic
that our food producers are now relying on food stamps.

JTPA admirably met the tests of serving the needs of the dislocated farmer this
past year. We can already project the number will increase. We have learned that
the needs of this applicant requires greater time rnd special assistance.

And we come back to the harsh reality that th r,inds are cut. We are in a period
where we must be fiscally responsible, and theref.r- there is little hope of addition-
al funding. Indeed, we can only hope we do not h...ve to sustain further cuts. There-
fore, we must make each dollar count and see that the dislocated farmer gets a fair
advantage. I strongly support this reexamination of JTPA Title III programs to
make doubly sure that the farmer is counted.

Thank you again, Mr. Chairman, for allowing me to voice my support for your
hearing, and for our farmers, here today.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you. I appreciate both of our colleagues
asking that they be represented here. It is useful to know that if
legislation is needed Senator Harkin and Mr. Bedell will be able to
work together.

3 c)
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The other point I want to underline, as Mr. Hodgson read on
behalf of Mr. Bedell, is that in the JTPA there is no provision for
living expenses. There is no stipend.

As you point out, industrial workers, service industry workers,
are much more likely to have unemployment compensation. A
farmer who has not been given a chance to get into that system,
that is a problem to be looked at because you have a family to feed
and basic payments to make. Training is useful, but if there is no
basic income support, the training isn't necessarily going to do you
much good. We do have to look at that. Questions?

Mr. NIELSON. I would ask one question of the gentleman from
Congressman Bedell's office. Do you believe the same principles
apply to trade adjustment assistance? Should there be training re-
adjustment assistance as well as JTPA?

Mr. HODGSON. I am not sure I understand the question fully, but
I think that----

Mr. NIELSON. Let me rephrase it. Typically if an industry such as
a steel plant cuts back on employment, if they can show that that
is trade-related, they have the Trade Readjustment Act, and work-
ers can receive training under that program. It is a little more
direct, does give a stipend, covers a shorter period of time, and they
are paid throughout that 18-month period a subsistence allowance
along with it. It is intended primarily for industries adversely af-
fected by imports. But agriculture can also be affected by trade.

So I wonder if you feel we should try to address that issue as
well.

Mr. FIonGsoN. I really Lan't address that question. I just don't
know.

Mr. FRANK. The gentleman makes a good point. If you would
yield to me for a second.

Mr. NIELSON. Yes.
Mr. FRANK. Trade adjustment is triggered, of course, if you lose

your job because imports increase to the United States. In agricul-
ture, the problem is often that exports are undercut by the same
unfair competition and if that is the case we should treat a subsidy
that leads to decreased American exports the same as a subsidy
that leads to increased imports. That is a point we ought to be look-
ing into.

Mr. NIELSON. We just had that extended another 45 days, I
think. I think it will be extended. It needs to be phased out for
budgetary reasons over a period of time but it has been very help-
ful to the smokestack industries. Frankly, agriculture has been just
as hard hit as the steel and copper industries.

But that may be one way to fill in with JTPA and I will ask the
same question of the JTPA people to see if there could be a wed-
ding of these two programs to help out on some of the problems
you mentioned.

Mr. FRANK. I thank you both very much for joining us and foryour interest.
Our next panel consist of two former farmers and I apologize in

advance if I mispronounce your names. I will pronounce them the
way we do in Massachusetts: Mr. Larry Broich and Mr. William
Knutson.

56-292 0 - 96 - 2
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Have I mispronounced one name that is unrecognizable or did we
miss someone for some other reason?

Mr. BROICH. You did real well.
Mr. FRANK. Is Mr. Knutson here?
Perhaps he was held up, but if he joins us later, we will hear

him.
Mr. Broich.

STATEMENT OF LARRY BROICH, FORMER FARMER FROM
LEON, IA

Mr. BROICH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, for allow-
ing me to express my opinion on JTPA.

I recently attended Creston College this fall, or last winter, and I
went through the JTP.A Program. I have went through the whole
gamut of fighting bankruptcy and going into different jobs. I am
still presently farming and I might consider semifarming this next
year, but getting a job off the farm is the primary goal I have.

My JTPA class consisted of 11 people. They were all displaced
agricultural personnel. One person discontinued the class after
about 3 days and frankly they still have quite a few problems down
there now. Our class started and after a week we all thought
maybe this was just another program to ease somebody's con-
science, but we had a psychologist come in and talk to us. They ex-
plained what the program was going to try and do for us, but it
was our responsibility to make it work.

After that, the change in the class was unbelievable. The instruc-
tors, the whole thing started tc gel. People found out what their
personalities were, what their abilities were and how they could
use these abilities someplace else. They learned how to write their
own résumés, conduct job interviews, and be able to control them.
The class was a plus for us right from the start.

I recently called all my classmates this last week and talked to
them all, or most of them anyway. A couple were unavailable be-
cause of jobs. One family were college-educated people that were
close to getting their college degree, but started farming. I talked
to the boy the other night and he said, "I didn't believe I could go
back to school," but he has. He is going down to Maryville now and
his wife is going to Creston. He had 12 hours to complete his educa-
tion. It is a family farm operation.

He had nothing but praise for the JTPA Program.
The others all have jobs, some of the jobs are not what they

really want, but they have the confidence that they will find the
job they want. The confidence is the whole key.

From despair we have had so many thingswe were afraid to
make decisions anymore. We thought, "Heck, everything we did
was wrong the last few years." We found out it wasn't all our fault
and still maintain it wasn't.

The importance of the program for us is giving us a chance to
find out what we can do. In my case I was lucky enough that I will
be able to probably live on the farm. I think there is a lot more
that could be done. People found, their confidence back, like all
these people I have talked to. They say, "Hey, I am going to make
it." Before that, they didn't really know.

3 4
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I think your guidelines are a little wrong. You people wait until
we are clear down and out and it would be a lot better if we could
get a transition-type deal where maybe we could run it on a debt-
to-asset ratio. If you were in danger of going under in a few years
or even a year, you could be qualified to go into this program.

A little bit on the farm credit. I have to throw this in. I think it
should be left to go. That is the wrong thing probably for a farmer
to say, if the debts are way over the top of the heads, and it is just
like a skyscraper, you can only build it so high and it is going to
fall. This is going to happen regardless, but have a program like
JTPA in there to try to kind of cushion the blow and then have a
program where the Government takes over or something that these
people can go back on the farm, maybe give them seven acres of
their homestead. This is the biggest concern of all the farmers is
the homestead.

Then after 5 years if they can buy it back from the Government
or something, fine, it will work, fellas, it will work. Fifty percent of
the people who went through the JTPA Program probably would
go into some other field because the heart is out of a lot of them.
There is just no doubt about that. I think they would probably go
to a different field of service and do well.

That is about all I have to say. I thank you very much for allow-
ing me to come and express my opinions to you.

I do believe the JTPA Program is very, very important. I think
that more people should be allowed to go into it. The guidelines
mainly should be raised a little bit so if you are forced out of the
farming business at least you got a place to go. So many think this
is the end of the world and frankly it is not. Like some say, it is a
privilege to farm. I guess it probably is that.

But I think with this type of program maybe some could com-
mute. It is not a big deal anymore. You can get on a plane in Chi-
cago in the morning and if you work there, or Kentucky or wherev-
er, or New York, maybe and leave the family back on the farm, we
don't need more empty farm steads out here. We have taxes to pay
and schools to support. Your businesses also will go down other-
wise.

I guess I could go on and on, but I am going to give back the
floor to you. If there are any questions or if I can do anything for
you people, I would be glad to answer.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you.
We will hear from Mr. Knutson and then ask questions of both

of you.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM KNIJI SON, FORMER FARMER FROM
OMAHA, NE

Mr. KNUTSON. I am Bill Knutson and I live in Dunlap, IA. I want
to thank you for the opportunity to speak.

I farmed for 23 years and gave it up. I found out about JTPA and

Mr. NIELSON. We are having difficulty hearing you.
Mr. FRANK. Let me set up that microphone a little better.
Mr. KNUTSON. Can you hear me now?
Mr. NIELSON. Good.
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Mr. KNUTSON. I owned my farm for 23 years and I would give up
because of the old story. Anyway, I---

Mr. NIELSON. Can you heal him in the back?
Mr. FRANK. Move your paper so you can look at it and get the

mike up there at the same time. That will do it.
Mr. KNUTSON. All right.
Everyone wants to hear me, I guess.
Anyway, we had to give up the farming and I didn't have very

good luck at finding jobs. Some weren't hiring anymore or what-
ever or not enough money.

So I looked into the paper and then they agreed, JTPA agreed to
help me out and I enrolled in the Universal Technical School here
in Omaha, and I took up refrigeration. I am about to graduate from
there and I have all kinds of opportunities now, I mean, even some
with big people, Montgomery Wards. I might have to relocate, but
it is there for me.

There are places here in Omaha and so that is really all I can
say is what it has done for me and I hope it can be passed on to
some of the others that will follow me in this particular situation.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Knutson follows:]
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November 14, 1985
TO: Congress of the United States

House of Representatives
Employment and Housing Subcommittee of

the Committee on Government Operations
FROM: William D. Knutson
RE: The Job Training Partnership Act and Farmers

My name is William D. Knutson and I live in Dunlap, Iowa.
I want to thank you very much for the opportunity to speak about JTPA
and the Farmer. Up to a year and a half ago I was a farmer and had
been for 23 years, basically all of my life. Farming gave me many
good things, especially the means to give my children the education
I never had. I have put two girls through nursing school, and a boy
through the University of Nebraska, and another boy is currently
attending Nebraska University. Even when times got rough starting 4
years ago I still managed to provide for my family.

I never dreamed I would loOse my farm and my lifetime of
hard work along with it. At 48 years of age I found myself back at
square one. Job hunting yielded as much as my fields did during a
droir,at. After 6 months of looking I realized.I had nothing to offer
of any value.

I had always had an interest in refrigeration, air condition-
ing and heating but had no formal training. At the advice of a friend
I contacted Universal Technical Institute in Omaha to look at getting
the proper education. The school appeared to be exactly what I needed
and was very highly recommended. I decided that this was what I
wanted.

So, what does JTPA have to do with all of this? Without the
assistance of JTPA I would be still pounding the pavement looking for
a job. JTPA has assisted tremendously with my educational costs so I
can continue to meet my day-to-day obligations while attending school.
At 48 I find myself with a promising future ahead of me thanks to the
fine people at U.T.I. and JTPA. I will soon be graduating and I have
opportunities you would not believe ahead of me. I am looking forw rd
to repaying, through my taxes, what JTPA has given me.
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What a difference a year makes.

I only have two suggestions to improve JTPA. The first is

to better inform the public of its existance. I found out about JTPA

through a small article in the newspaper. To me it should be front

page news.
The second suggestion is that a heavy emrhasis he put on

retraining farmers using schools like U.T.I. The training at these

schools, in my opinion, is best suited for people like me who need

training but cannot spend two or three years getting it. I know

several farmers in situations similar to mine that could benefit from

the combination of JTPA and these private voc&tional schools.

In closing, I want to thank you very much for listening to

me and I hope that this will in some way help those who follow me.

Mr. FRANK. Mr. Lightfoot, would you like to start with ques-
tions?

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Larry, the first question is for you. You have been through the

whole gamut, as you said, and I can detect, I think, a bit of confi-
dence in your voice and your attitude which is commendable under
the circumstances that you have been through.

My perception is that a lot of people who are involved in agricul-
ture, and it has been their lifestyle, this is one of the big problems
from the very beginning, that you just feel like you are not worth
anything, that you don't have anything to sell.

Is that a correct perception or not?
Mr. BROICH. Oh, yes, the whole class was that way. One of the

ladies, she was a farm wife, she was really backward, I mean, as
far as being able to think she could do things. She just thought,
"Well, I am a cook and that is it." Now she is keeping medical
records at the hospital, that is what she started out with; and now
she is a receptionist and she is a perfect receptionist. We could all
see it right away.

At the end of 9 weeks this program had people sit right up in the
middle of class and tell you exactly what is wrong with you, what
bothers you and what is the matter with this person, and the guy
says, "Thanks a lot for helping me out," it is a whole different
deal.

You are dealing with very proud people here. Just to get them to
go to the class is going to be tough.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. That was what I wanted to get to. The basic
problem as I see it is to get farmers to come in the first place and
say, "I do need some help."

How do we do that? How do we get the word out?
Mr. BROICH. I think through public meetings and maybe have

somebody like myself talk to them. If you haven't been through
ityou can have all the psychology degrees in the world and know
everything, but if you haven't been through this thing, it is some-
thing to deal with, and, men, we have a problem coming up that
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you won't believe. This thing is going to snowball and it is going to
be unbelievable.

We can see it coming. We have said it for years and it is there.
We were locked into high-interest rates. We couldn't get cut and
we are done. The debt gets so high, you might as well face the fact.
It is there, we won't get rid of it.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. You mentioned guidelines a couple of times in
your statement. If the guidelines were different and you could have
maybe been involved in this type of program before you got down
financially as far as you did, would that have been an advantage,
and if so, how do we need to change the guidelines so that you can
qualify earlier?

Mr. BROICH. In my case, it really was. I knew a year ago. My
bankruptcy was last spring, but I knew a year in advance this was
going to happen. I am a facts-and-figures person, I guess. I found
this out at school in the JTPA Program.

I could see the handwriting on the wall and I knew I had to be
ready. So that is probably answering your question; a year.

These people that are left on the farms are not stupid. They are
pretty sharp people. They watch what they are doing.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. How would you suggest that the guidelines be
changed so that using your own situation you could have gotten
into the program earlier, for example?

Mr. BROICH. The main fact will be to get the guys to come, I
would say the lenders, if a man is in danger and it is easy to see if
your debt-to-asset ratio, supposedly the magical figure is 2 to 1, if
they get to 3 to 1 or something like that, or use the suggestions of a
lender that this man might be in trouble. What if you spend $1,000
on the person and help him out? Maybe before he gets so far down,
he might go to town and get a job.

It is pride. It is a farmer, and, well, FHA's guidelines up to a few
years ago were that you had to be a full-time farmer before you
could even get help. So you take it in that perspective, give this
man a shot before he is down.

When you are clear down and they have the gavel up to sell your
stuff off, it is too late.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Which, if you could get into the program sooner,
would alleviate some problems that Mr. Nielson and Mr. Frank
mentioned earlier that you wouldn't need that stipend because you
still have some income from the farm and you could go from there.

It is my understanding that the guidelines today are that if you
worked an hour a week or if you are maybe looking after your
neighbor's cattle, you are consid.ered employed so you don't qualify
as unemployed. That doesn't seem fair to me.

Mr. BROICH. Well, it is a nitpicking rule, is the way I would call
it. You are going to see more. I think if you could get these people
into a transition program, that would be the thing. You can't just
go outyou can, but you don't. You can't go out and tell a person,
"Hey, your lifestyle, the way you lived it, is over; fine."

But if you tell him that, "Look, we might have to, we are going
to have to do something different, this can't go on, but go into this
program and come back and talk to me," you know, I think you
will probably have to tell a person he will have to go into it. But
we didn't know. I read it in the paper, about the JTPA Program. I
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am one for education anyhow. I will try anything to get a little
education, and that is why I went.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. From an ad you saw in the paper?
Mr. 13110ICH. From the ad I saw in the paper. Ginny Powers, she

said come in and see, and she explained it and I said heck, it has
got to be of some help, so it was a help to me.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I really don't know how to ask this. But how big
of a factor is the pride, believing in individuality and so on that the
farmers possess? It seems like at this point it may be a stumbling
block; they are such proud people, they will not come forward to
these programs.

Is that a big stumbling block? How should this program be sold
to them so they don't perceive it as a handout or whatever it is
that goes against that thing inside that says I am going to do this
myself?

Mr. BROICH. First of all, I would change the name of the pro-
gram. Dislocated worker is notdoes not fit the farmer. Make it a
farm program. Seems like the farmers are alwa ys takirsg a cut off
of something eise, even our own Government prograin where we
get our money from our Government programs, ASCS office and
all, we are in with the Food Stamp Program, you know. We
shouldn't be.

It should be a separate deal. FHA is a Farmers' Home Adminis-
tration, but it finances how many thousand6 of homes in the cities?
Our people in FHA are swamped with the farm program, but they
have also got the program of the worker in the city buying him a
house. Here is this poor old boy behind the FHA desk, with a farm
program here, and then we have a city worker program here and it
isn't the same.

There is a whole different gamut of guidelines to follow from a
farmer to a city worker.

It is probably unfair to the city worker. He sees the combines,
the house, and he says I am living in a little apartment and here
he lives there, but they don't understand it. There are people right
in Leon, IA, and Creston, IA, saying hey, you deserve everything
you got. We might deserve something, but we didn't deserve it all.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I agree.
There is an obvious difference between you fellas, you represent

two differentiations. Bill, you have been on the farm basically for a
large portion of your life. Now you find that you are making this
transition.

Did you share somewhat the same mental problems and anguish
that Larry went through?

Mr. KNUTSON. Exactly the same thing. It is very hard, especially
when you get turned down when you apply for all these jobs. And I
was in deep. There was no other thing to do but to give it up, you
know.

Your debt gets so far ahead of you you cannot be helped.
This program worked real good for me because all I cot.:ld ever do

was get a part-time job and go to school and there was a little help
and my wife worked some, so we got along good.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Gentlemen, thank you very much for your testi-
mony.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. FRANK. Mr. Nielson.
Mr. NIELSON. Mr. Broich said he learned about JTPA in the

paper. How did you learn about it?
Mr. KNUTSON. From the newspaper. Just a little article.
Mr. NIELSON. You saw it in the newspaper as well.
Mr. KNUTSON. Yes.
Mr. NIELSON. How could we better promote it so other people

could learn about it and so on'? Could we do a public Aervice an-
nouncement over the radio to you? Would that be helpful?

Mr. KNUTSON. Yes, I think that would help. I believe the techni-
cal schools should, you know, they offer other kinds of plans of as-sistance. They ought to have that to niention, too. But special
notice to the farmers, yes, and to lenders, also.

Mr. NIELSON. Congressman Bedell mentioned we should trigger it
earlier; in other words, not wait until the foreclo:Fure notice is
there but instead, wait only until there are negative cash-flow bal-
ances; or critical debt-to-asset ratios, as you mentioned.

Do you think that is a good approach?
Mr. BROICH. That is the only approach. There are too many

people now on the farm hoping it will go away. The Farm Credit
System is sitting there hoping this problem will go away.

It is not going to go away.
My advice to anybody is to attack the problem, don't sit back andjust sit there and wait for things to happen. With this program

they have got a means to attack the problem.
Mr. NIELSON. When you first went into JTPA to find out about

the program in response to this ad, they were very helpful to you, Iunderstand.
Mr. BROICH. Yes.
Mr. NIELSON. How could they expand their services and makethem a iittle more easily available and how could they improve the

services? Do you have suggestions for them to either improve their
approach or to disz4eminate the information better?

Can you offer suggestions on that?
Mr. BROICH. I think just the times are going to dictate a different

approach. When things were relatively calm, we were on the brink,
we were the first ones, but by getting people through the program
they are going to be able to help themselves now.

You know, you call a family farm coalition meeting and r_y gosh,
there will be hundreds of people there. Well, they should have a
meeting like that and explain the program to them, what it will do
for them, or what it is supposed to do.

Nothing will do anything for anybody if they don't make up in
their mind that they have a problem and you know, some peoplewillwe are not going to reach some. But the ones we reach it will
help them very much.

Mr. NIELSON. How many farmers have taken advantage of JTPA,
at least in this section of Iowa now? You mentioned 11, that wasthe first group.

Mr. BROICH. Yes.
Mr. NIELSON. How are things going now, are there more there?
Mr. BROICH. You mean needing the program?
Mr. NIELSON. Yes, are there more in the college at Creston?
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Mr. BROICH. There hasn't been another program, as I under-
stand. But as far as need for the program, you bet, there are people
calling me to come to talk to church groups and this kind of thing,
because they knew I went through it. Everybody kind of watched. I
got questioned on the street, what do you do there? We said, "Well,
if you get a chance go to the program and it don't cost you any-
thing to go."

That is the best deal, because everybody is broke. They don't
have any money.

Mr. NIELSON. What are you doing now?
Mr. BROICH. I am currently farming which I probably would keep

doing on a small scale, but I have a job with a new glass company
in Lamoni and frankly, they have been waiting a month for me to
try and get the crops out. I went in to talk to them the other day
and they say, hey, no problem; when you get done come on in.
They are very understanding.

I think we have a lot of sympathy. Maybe through all this mess,
people are trying to help the family farm.

Mr. NIELSON. There is a real partnership between the company
and the training.

Mr. BROICH. Yes, definiteiy.
Mr. NIELSON. What are you doing now, Mr. Knutson?
Mr. KNUTSON. I pick up temporary work.
Mr. NIELSON. You pick up temporary work while you go to tech-

nical college?
Mr. KNUTSON. Yes. I am there most of all in the days. Of course

my wife works.
Mr. NimsoN. What area are you looking at, what area of employ-

ment do you want to head for?
Mr. KNUTSON. Refrigeration.
Mr. NIELSON. Refrigeration, I see.
Mr. KNUTSON. Heating, of course, and air-conditioning.
Mr. NIELSON. I commend you both for coming forward. I Ilve no

further questions at this time.
MT. FRANK. Just a couple for me.
Mr. Knutson, you indicated you thought at the end of your

course things looked good for you, there were prospects, retailers
and others had been interested. When you complete the course you
will be able to get full-time work in the area you are working for?

Mr. KNUTSON. Absolutely. I should have brought a letter, one
from Montgomery Wards, I could have showed it to you.

Mr. FRANK. I would just say it is an argument in favor of expan-
sion of the program, because as Mr. Broich said, a lot of people
were skeptical at first. The Government doesn't always have a rep-
utation for doing things well.

But the fact is we must get the word out. Sometimes Government
programs can be useful.

I think it is important for you to have that sense and also as you
show the success you gentlemen and others are having, we can
expect more applicants for the program. We better be ready for it.
That is probably what bothers me because I have to tell you now, if
things go the way they look like they are going, this program will
be cut next year as are almost all programs. I think this is an argu-
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ment for us trying to be discriminating when we cut the budget
and cut some things, but not necessarily everything.

My sense is because this has been a successful program to some
extent, other people will want to go into it.

Mr. Broich, you are out speaking about it. My guess is next time
they have the class, they will have more people applying than they
can handle. You both mentioned pride as a factor, American farm-
ers are the victims of their success, not of failures. We are not talk-ing about people who are lousy farmers, we are talking aboutpeople who are good farmers and are subject to circumstances
beyond their control. It is important to build people's confidence. Ifwe get a situation where people like you take advantage of the pro-
esram, find employment, and we begin to build up people's confi-
dence and they apply to the program and they are turned down, itwould seem to me we would be making a big mistake. We would
hope to have an adequate level of funding so people stimulated tojoin this program by your successes can be taken care of.

I thanL ou both very much for testifying. I know it is not easywhen you have been the victim of adverse circumstances to comeand share them, but by sharing them you have helped a lot ofthose people and you have gone through the program and it is
working well for both of you.

I appreciate your willingness to come and share your experiences
so other men and women will find it easier. It is a very nice thingyou have done. Thank you.

Next we will have Mr. Philip Smith, director, Division for
Human Resources Coordination, Iowa Office of Planning and Pro-
gramming, accompanied by three local service delivery area direc-
tors, D. Eugene Epperson, Jerry Smith, and Gary Woodward.

We will move quickly here, so we want Mr. Smith, Mr. Epperson,
Jerry Smith, and Mr. Woodward.

What we will do is hear all your statements, and then questionswill come from us after you finish. That way we avoid duplicative
questions and you can all comment.

Let's start with Philip Smith, director, Division for Human Re-
sources Coordination, Iowa Office of Planning and Programming.

STATEMENT OV PHILIP C. SMITH, DIRECTOR, DIVISION FOR
HUMAN RESOURCES COORDINATION, IOWA OFFICE OF PLAN-
NING AND PROGRAMMING
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, Mr.

Lightfoot, Mr. Nielson. Welcome to Iowa.
As indicated in the introduction, I am director of the human re-

sources division within the Office for Planning and Programming.In that capacity, I serve as the State director for the JTPA Act and
therefore am qvite involved in many of the activities we are dis-cussing today.

I am pleased to be here this morning to discuss with you how the
programs funded through JTPA have been or can be of assistanceto farmers. As you are aware, Iowa, along with several otherStates, is undergoing some radical changes in the agricultural
sector of our economy. High interest rates, the overvaluation of thedollar and low farm prices have had a major impact upon our econ-
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omy, our farms, and the families and communities dept2nding upon
farm income.

While the intent of this hearing is not directed at the farm econ-
omy per se, it is important to understand the severity of the prob-
lem in order to appreciate the task ahead of those who are being
asked to retrain farmers for new occupations. If I may, I would like
to give you a brief overview of Iowa's farm economy.

The national farm crisis is often typified by using Iowa as the ex-
ample. Nationally 12 percent of the farms are technically insolvent
and on the verge of bankruptcy. The U.S. Department of Agricul-
ture [USDA] estimates a 30-percent decrease in net farm income in
1985. Although no figures are available for 1984 or 1985, Iowa net
farm income was $17,680 in 1981, $7,376 in 1982, and a negative
$1,891 in 1983. Coupled with continued decreasing land values, low
prices, and high interest rates, the situation gets worse and Iowa
farmers are being forced to liquidate.

A January 1985 Farm Journal poll indicated 42 percent of Iowa
farmers face debt troubh and half of them are at "high risk." In
January 1985, the Iowa Legislature, Senate Concurrent Resolution
4, declared an economic emergency and during the session
launched legislation in response to the crisis. The Governor, along
with financial institutions and rural agencies and organizations,
initiated special programs to help farmers cope with the failures.

Bankruptcy rates for Iowa farmers continue to rise. According to
a report r the Director of Administrative Filings of Bankruptcy,
bankruptcy filings for the year ending June 1983 were 2,413 and
for the year ending June 1984-2,744. This does not include farm
foreclosures. Also indicative of the crisis is the number of bank
closings. In 1983, there were no closings, in 1984 there were 2, and
already in 1985 there have been 11. According to a Federal Reserve
study:

During the period from mid-1983 to mid-1983, the ratio of delinquent loans-to-cap-
ital assets in Iowa banks rose 7 percent to 32 percentthe greatest increase of any
state.

It is projected that bankruptcy rates will increase from the his-
toric 3 percent to 18 percent in the next year. The Federal Reserve
reports that Iowa was the highest State in the region in reporting
declining repayment rates, monthly renewals and extensions of
loans. Nationally, the levels of new charge-offs of loans in the first
half of 1984 approach 0.7 percent of farm loans outstanding. And
Iowa exceeds the national average with 0.9 percent.

These conditions are amplified by the fact that Iowa showed a
drastic reduction in farm land value. Between 1983 and 1984, land
decreased in value by $334 per acre, or 19.8 percent. Since 1981,
land prices decreased 37 percent, returning the price to the 1976
level. Inventories on all livestock are down and the Iowa Livestock
& Reporting Services reported in August that cattle inventories are
at the lowest since 1931.

A recent poll conducted by Iowa State University, the Iowa De-
partment of Agriculture, and the Iowa Crop & Livestock Reports
Service in March 1935, indicated that 11 percent of Iowa farm oper-
ators have a debt-to-asset ratio of over 70 percent.
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An additional 21 percent have a debt-to-asset ratio of 40 to 70
percent. Iowa's proportion of farmers that have an estimated debt-
to-asset ratio of 40 percent or above has steadily increased over the
previous years. Iowa banks reported in February this year that 18
percent of the farm loans had significant problems in the repay-
ment of loans.

Agriculture and financial economists believe farmers with a
debt-to-asset ratio over 70 percent in the current economy are in-
solvent and have little hope for survival. Those over 40 percent are
at "high risk."

The poll also indicated that the farmers surveyed experienced a
significant loss in net worth$114,000 or a 24.8-percent decrease
since 1984. Assets declined 18 percent and debts increased by 3.2
percent, but non-real-estate debt rose 13.2 percent. In 1984, only 5
percent of the sample had debts greater than 70 percent of their
assets. By 1985, 11 percent of the sample operators will have fallen
into this category.

Iowa also continues to feel the effects of adverse weather condi-
tions. The 1983 drought had an estimated $608 million loss in eco-
nomic activity. According to the study, "Impact of 1983 Drought in
Iowa," Daniel Otto, June 1, 1984, the $608 million represents job
losses equivalent to an estimated 9,933 employees. The multiplier
of 1.91 implies that for each 10 jobs lost in the agriculture sector,
an additional 19 jobs are lost in the nonagriculture sector of Iowa's
economy. Current drought conditions in parts of the State indicate
additional job and economic losses.

Economists and financial experts point out that this continued
erosion of the farm base will have a disastrous effect on the rural
communities. For example, Iowa State University points outthat
suppliers of feed, seed, fertilizers, and other farm units are highly
vulnerable to losses from accounts receivable. They point out that
losses of 5 percent of sales would put 50 percent of that group out
of business. So while we are focusing on the farms per se, we also
have to consider the needs of agribusinesses end those dependent
on farmers as consumers.

Unlike most other dislocated workers, farmers do not have un-
employment insurance coverage to allow for financial assistance
during the transition period in seeking new employment. Farm
families seek a variety of methods to hold on to the farm. In a
March 1985 rural farm poll conducted by the Cooperative Exten-
sion Service, 28 percent of the 1,900 farm families polled indicated
they sold possessions or cashed in insurance policies, 27 percent
postponed medical care and 22 percent took off-farm employment.

Eighteen percent reported purchasing more items on credit and
13 percent reported they had let their life insurance lapse. Ten per-
cent reported they were unable to pay property taxes.

What this means for Iowa is a number of things. One, during this
coming year it is expected that we can lose as many as 12,500
farms. That translates into 24,800 dislocated farmers and farm
family members who will seek new employment.

The loss of these farms means a loss of 992 rural businesses. This
will mean a loss of 24,800 rural "town" jobs. That will create a
rural unemployment loss of 49,000 people in need of jobs, retrain-
ing or relocating.
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The cost for 1 year of retraining and relocating these people will
cost in excess of $50 million.

The State in short, has been swept by the rampant change in the
nature of the economy over the last 2 to 3 years, something we are
not accustomed to in this State, and something we are having diffi-
culty in finding the response that will be right.

Turning to JTPA, we recognize that JTPA is not a "farm pro-
gram," nor was it necessarily designed to serve farmers, an increas-
ing number of farmers, farm organizations, and community groups
are looking toward this program for assistance.

Specifically, interested parties are looking for help in defining
new career goals and options, counseling, job search assistance, re-
training, and relocation. Perhaps cne of the reasons the program is
popular is that it is one of the few Federal programs that has any
flexibility in it, the flexibility needed to reach this diverse popula-
tion group.

In response to this situation, we were asked by Governor Bran-
stad in April of 1984 to seek new ways of helping farmers via
JTPA. We then rewrote the definitions of a dislocated worker, so
that self-employed individuals who wel e being foreclosed upon,
unable to secure credit, or had filed a bankruptcy petition were eli-
gible for the program. We were the first State in the Nation to go
out and declare farmers eligible and since then, several States have
copied that lead.

Using this title III definition, and the enrollment criteria for title
HA of JTPA, we have been able to serve approximately 318 farm-
ers since July 1, 1984. We have done this through our network of
16 dislocated worker centers, our 16 title HA grant recipients, and
2 small discretionary projects funded with title III carryover funds
directed at farmers.

Our efforts to date, while moderately successful, need to be inte.
sified as we face the major problem awaiting us with respect to the
large number of agriculture-related dislocations. This is wl I, we
were pleased to receive a $500,000 title HI discretion grant from
the Secretary of Labor to retrain dislocated farmers. This grant
will enable us to serve about 385 farmers in a 28 county area, be-
ginning December 1, 1985.

Additionally, we are looking now at targeting a portion of the 8
percent funds provided through section 123 of JTPA for State edu-
cation and coordination grants toward farmers. We feel this section
of the law will enable us to focus on three areas of training vitally
important to the State.

First, through the coordination provisions of section 123, we feel
we can undertake the development of a statewide program de-
signed to help farmers who are likely to remain in farming up-
grade their managerial. skills. Farmers today and in the future will
require intense and professional management techniques. JTPA
should be a part of this process.

Second, there needs to be a greater coordination of the resources
available to assist dislocated farmers make the transition from
farming to some other form of employment. JTPA, with its net-
work of private industry councils, administrative entities and 6du-
cational institutions, should play a greater role in this area. We
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are currently exploring potential actions the State can take to en-
courage this coordination and targeting of resources.

Right now many people and many organizations in the State
want to get involved and do have things to offer, but there does not
seem to be a point of leadership and we are now attempting to mo-
bilize that at this time, and JTPA will play a major role in that.

Finally, under this same section, we are studying ways to target
some of the money to serve farmers and other agribusinesses. Sec-
tion 123(c)(1) of the act allows the Governor to use 25 percent of
these resources on noneconomically disadvantaged participants re-
quiring special assistance. Certainly many farmers will fall into
this category.

As you have anticipated, there are problems in attempting to
serve farmers via the JTPA employment and training system.
From my perspective, I believe the major areas include:

One, difficulties in the identification of farmers who are eligible
and are likely to benefit through such a program. When a plant
closes, there is much publicity about it and peer group support
from the affected workers is a rallying point. No such system exists
for farmers residing in rural areas. They often are reluctant to
even talk about their problems, let alone seek Government assist-
ance.

There is significant signs that there are major family stresses in
many of these rural communities and families. Reported instances
of family violence and divorce rates and things like this are show-
ing that this has had a major impact.

Many of these things go unreported and are hard to tabulate, but
there are many anecdotal stories.

The second area is inability to intervene quickly enough. This
was mentioned earlier. To help farmers make the transition less
painful. While production workers can be enrolled in a title III ac-
tivity once given a notice of layoff, even though that might be 6 to
12 months in the future, there is no easy way to enroll farmers
before they are forced off their farms. Faster intervention can help
many people prepare for new careers and still allow them to farm
and support their families.

We get phone calls from people who want it but are not ready to
leave farming. I think it is a must that we have to be able to inter-
vene quicker than we can now, especially since JTPA does not
have the means to provide allowances. There needs to be a form of
income support for farmers.

The unemployed production worker who recently received a
layoff notice may be able to draw unemployment benefits in this
time. That is essential to support family obligations he or she may
have.

In the farm situation they don't have that to draw upon. They
have also lost all their resources or they are tied up in litigation.
So we have a tremendous income need that we have to meet and
that is a barrier to the program.

The third area is the difficulty in determining the elibility of
farmers under both title IIA and title III. Income records and ex-
pense reports are very complicated for farm operators which makes
it a frustratiung and time consuming process to determine eligibil-
ity.
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And finally, four, the lack of JTPA funds to support a major,
statewide retraining effort targeted toward dislocated agricultural
workers. The JTPA system has been criticized on the national level
for not spending its title III funds. This is not true in Iowa. For the
21-month period beginning October 1, 1983, and ending June 30,
1985, Iowa has spent 90.1 percent of the funds contracted. This
could have been 100 percent, but we have committed over $1 billion
annually in State appropriated money to meet the match require-
ments because of our strong support for this type of program.

To make the figures look better, we could have spent all our Fed-
eral funds first before tapping the State money. My point in bring-
ing this up is to state clearly for the record that Iowa has used the
money appropriated by Congress. This is not the time to cut money
from this important effort. To make the figures look better we
could have shown that all Federal moneys were spent and conse-
quently we saved State money, but we elected not to do that.

My point is that this is the major rationale given in the Appro-
priations Committee in Congress for cutting the money. I want to
make clear that that is not the case in Iowa. I would encourage you
not to penalize States like Iowa, Nebraska, or other smaller States,
because some of the larger ones have failed to spend the money
that has been appropriated to them and allocated to them. There
needs to be that kind of flexibility and discretion within the form
used currently by the Department of Labor.

In closing, I would like to just offer a few suggestions for delib-
eration by this committee. First, in order to successfully serve this
population, States and their local counterparts will have to develop
more effective outreach systems if they hope to reach those in
need. At the same time, they will need to be able to intervene ear-
lier with their services, and to do a better job of coordinating ac-
tivities with other related groups and programs.

Second, I believe JTPA elibility guidelines need to be liberalized
to cut down on the amount of time and energy it takes to qualify
someone for the program.

Third, Congress and the Department of Labor should target a
major portion of the discretionary title III dollars to the agricultur-
al sector of the economy. If new training programs are being con-
sidered, targeting these efforts toward farmers should be made a
priority. At a minimum, it should be clear that farmers are indeed
eligible, and enrollment restrictions should be minimized.

Finally, I would suggest that the Secretary of Labor appoint a
task force to specifically look at JTPA and its ability to serve dis-
placed agricultural workers. This is not a midwestern problem. It is
a national problem of growing concern to States from Maine to
California. The Department of Labor should take the lead in clari-
fying ways and methods for JTPA to serve farmers and those de-
pendent upon farming.

This agency should be encouraged to liberally interpret the stat-
ute to help States overcome some of the barriers in reaching those
most in need. Under the new leadership of Secretary Brock and
upon the urgency of Congress, we have high hopes of the Depart-
ment's sensitivity to our Nation's agricultural economy, and the
hundreds of thousands of individuals and families faced with unem-
ployment because of it.
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JTPA can and should be and will be important in the process of
helping people through this difficult transitional period in their
lives.

I thank you very much for the opportunity to share my thoughts
with you this morning. I appreciate your interest in this subject,
and I would be glad to assist in whatever way I can.

Thank you very much.
Mr. FRANK. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
Before we go to questions, we will hear from Mr. Epperson.

STATEMENT OF D. EUGENE EPPERSON, DIRECTOR, JTPA
SERVICE DELIVERY AREA

Mr. EPPERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for allowing me to tes-
tify this morning. I will be rather brief and hopefully to the point.

Providing employment and training assistance to farmers in our
eight-county area is a very difficult and frustrating task. Their em-ployment and training needs are similar to those who have lost
their jobs and must change occupations. However, their individual
situations are vastly different than those who lose their jobs
through plant closings or layoffs whereby you have a definite date
of unemployment.

Some of the differences are as follows; One, they all live in thecountry and are not easily accessibleno public transportation;
two, most are private business people who are employersnot em-
ployees; three, many have diversified farming operations; four,
some have options such as reducing operations, selling land, live-
stock or equipment; five a few will stay living on the farm seeking
jobs in town or with other farmers; six, others will leave the farm
but not the rural community; seven, many will not accept general
assistance or food stamps, and; eight, very few actually wish toleave farming.

We have found a very small need for training other than on-the-
job training with private industry. Farmers tell us "we need imme-
diate income to provide for our families." Only those who relocate
or wish to change careers compktely are willing to accept institu-
tional or job-seeking training and they need funds to support themwhile in training.

A number of farmers do not qualify for HA funding because they
or their wives have taken employment in town and that income is
viewed separately from the farming operation. More farmers would
be eligible if all of their income were compared against all of their
losses. Title III funds are the primary source of dollars used to
assist the farmers, and the more than 1,000 residents of our service
delivery area who have lost their jobs due to permanent reductions
and plant closings since July 1, 1984. This year's budget is woefully
inadequate to fulfill these needs, while next year's budget is antici-
pated to be less than one-half of this year's appropriation. Specific
funding with minimal restrictions on supportive services wouid
appear to be the optimal solution to meeting farmers' needs in the
area of employment and training through JTPA.

Thank you.
Mr. FRANK. Thank you.
Mr. Jerry Smith.
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STATEMENT OF JERRY SMITH, DIRECTOR, JTPA SERVICE
DELIVERY AREA 14

Mr. JERRY SMITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Service delivery area 14 of Iowa's JTPA Program is one of the

most rural service delivery area's in the Nation, serving seven
counties in southwestern Iowa. Efforts are currently being made to
utilize title III of JTPA to assist the dislocated farmer population.

The problems in the farming community are well documented.
Service delivery area 14 has experienced the effects of three bank
closings in the past 18 months, accompanied with significant loss of
income being generated the past 2 years. Estimates vary, with pre-
dictions of 10 percent to 20 percent of the farmers in our service
delivery area becoming displaced.

Two areas of concern I wish to address today include: One, the
definition of "dislocated farmer" at best is a vague status which is
extremely difficult to classify. Where the farmer can be in several
stages of liquidation, the question of when he in fact becomes eligi-
ble for service arises constantly. My suggestion is, by working
through the Iowa State administrative entity and the Department
of Labor, the definition be expanded to serve individuals who self-
declare their status as dislocated farmers who are r:::-.1eking transi-
tion to other employment.

Two, with an understanding of the lack of Federal resources
available, I would cite the concern of funding considerations under
JTPA. Of particular concern are substantial real cuts in title III
and IIB which in our SDA directly affect programming capabilities
at a time when demand for services are increasing. This is especial-
ly true in rural areas in general, which prevents farmers who
become dislocated, from being counted in unemployment statistics,
thus, not reflecting the need of area funding by formula.

My service area has unemployment rates that range in the area
of 4 to 5 percent, very marginal. Yet we are seeing a lot of farmers
who because they are not qualified for unemployment also are not
qualified for unemployment statistics.

When it gets to the Federal funding formula, coming down from
title III or title II, frankly our funding is somewhat marginal.

In summary, I don't think JTPA can be the solution to the farm
problem. I don't think throwing additional dollars into the problem
is er ,ugh. We have people working hard bringing light industry
into our area doing a lot of economic development efforts. I think
what we are looking at in our area is once that industry arrives
and it is coming in, assisting farmers like Mr. Broich to make that
transition is critical.

One of our assets is we have some ,,.xcellent people. I think Mr.
Broich is testimony to that.

Hopefully with some minor adjustments we can make the 'pro-
gram work in our area. Thank you for this opportunity.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Jerry Smith follows:]
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Testimony presented by: Jerry Smith, 1TPA Service
Delivery Area 14 Director, 215 North Elm, Creston,
Iowa - "The Job Training Partnership Act and
Serving Dislocated Farmers".

Service Delivery Area 14 of Iowa's JTPA Program is one of the most rural
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to serve individuals who self-declare their status

dislocated farmers who are seeking transition

to other employment.

(2) With an understanding of the lack of Federal resources

available, I would cite the concern of Zunding consi-

derations under JTPA. Of particular concern are sub-

stantial real cuts in Title III and hR which in our

SDA directly effect programming capabilities at a time

when demand tor services are increasing. rhis is

especially true in rural areas w0,01mhT in generalpre-

vents farmers who become dislocated, from being counted

in unemployment statistics thus, not reflecting the

need of area funding by formula.

In summary, JTPA cannot and should not be considered a solution to the

farm problem. It should also be recognized that additional dollars

by itself % .11 not solve the problem. What must be done is a local

effort to bring jobs into the area with economic development followed

by utilization of JTPA funding to assist the dislocated farmer pop-

ulation into a more diversified labor force. This is the partner-

ship required to make JTPA a truly successful program.
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DPI says Rinngold
County hardest-hit
by economic times

This area of the state, particularly
Rmggold County, is hardest hit by Lhe
tough economic times according to
statistics gathered by the Iowa Depart-
ment of Public In_strucuon.

The study said about 15 percent of
Iowa's population-432,795 peo-
pleare below the poverty level, bas-
ed on 1963 tax data furnished by the
Iowa Department of Revenue. In com-
parison, 29 percent of Ringgold
County's population is below the pover-
ty line, and 28 percent of Taylor County

Tile a:ea of Adair, Adams,
rke,Decatur, NIontgornery, Ring-

gold, Taylor and Union counties as a
o hole lists an overall poverty percen

of 22. the worst section in th

cour, les ri1Zse Tffdwith .1 1 per-
cent. The best economic conditions
seem to be in central Iowa, with only
about 12 percent of the population

Attachment: A
Creston News

Advertiser,
Fall 1985

below the poverty level.
Criteria for determining poverty

levels are providell by the U.S. Depart-
ment of Labor and based on income
level and family sue. For example, for
a family of eight, the criterion would
be an a3nua1 mcorne of $17,8:30 or
below.

The DPI uses poverty level statistics
in distributing federal funds for vo,.:a-
Lonal education programs. More than
half of the federal vocational education
funds coming into a state mtazt be
allocated to eeonon-jcaily depressed
areas.

The counties with :he lowest percen-
Lace Of their pe,pulauan classified ai
low income were Ste,ry (9 percer.t
Johnson (9 percent), Polk ,10 percent)
and Scott (10 percent). All are urban
counties, containing the cities of Ames,
Iowa City, Des Mcines and Davenport,
respectively.
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Mr. FRANK. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
Mr. Woodward.

STATEMENT OF GARY WOODWARD, DIRECTOR, JTPA SERVICE
DELIVERY AREA

Mr. WOODWARD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Job Training Partnership Act Program legislation as cur-

rently written does not lend itself easily to serving farmers in dis-
ti ttit4, T111 1_1t141A. 1_11 111 11;1 iatellipt to interpret Department of
Labor regulations, has determined that a farmer must be declared
bankrupt, foreclosed upon or not able to receive a line of credit in
order to be eligible for the Title III Dislocated Worker Program of
the Job Training Partnership Act.

The title IIA eligibility guidelines are based on the last 6 months
income and expenses. With some regularity, the last 6 month's fi-
nancial picture is not reflective of the circumstances for the entire
year. There can be a skewing of either income or expenses to
excess.

If the farm economy sector is to be served, legislative change is
needed to allow eligibility requirements to be more reflective of the
entire financial picture.

Suggestions for change are as follows: One, title IIA eligibility re-
quirements should be based on the last 12 months financial infor-
mation instead of the last 6 months for self-employed applicants.

Two, the Department of Labor should standardize eligibility re-
quirements for title III applicants who have been self-employed.
This is necessary because the State of Iowa has had to make a deci-
sion on eligibility criteria without assistance from the Department
of Labor. Historically, Iowa takes the more conservative approach
in these situations. The effect has been to make title III practically
useless to assist farmers and other self-employed individuals to
obtain retraining.

There is another problem facing program operators who deal
with farmers seeking services from the Job Training Partnership
Act. Most applicants from the farm sector that we see are not seek-
ing training or retraining for new jobs. They are trying to find em-
ployment in order to establish a cash-flow that will enable them to
continue farming. This does not easily align with program con-
straints that operators must conform to.

The dilemma for the Congress and policymakers is to decide if
they want the Job Training Partnership Act to be a primary vehi-
cle to assist the farm sector.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you, gentlemen.
I have some phone calls that I have to make back to Washington,

and I will ask Mr. Nielson to preside for a while but I just want to
express my thanks to all of you for coming forward.

My leaving is not an indication that I am not interested, your
testimony is very useful and we will be addressing these things
that you have testified to.

Mr. NIELSON [presiding]. I congratulate you on your testimony
and I will call on Congressman Lightfoot for questions, and I have
a few after he is finished.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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First of all, this question is to you, Mr. Epperson, but maybe the
rest of you want to jump in on it because you are out on the front
line seeing this every day and working on it.

If I am hearing what I think I am hearing, one of the problems is
definition of how people fit into the program, which is what one of
the farmers said earlier.

If you were given a Big Chief tablet and a lead pencil and were
allowed to sit down and write the definitions, what kind of defini-
tions would you write that would allow an equitable way for get-
ting people into the program?

I throw that out to all of you.
Mr. EPPERSON. I personally think Gary spoke for all of us con-

cerning the counting of 1 year's income in determining eligibility.That certainly would make more people qualify throughout the
year. Also when you take and separate farm income it caused them
to become ineligible. You know, there are many farmers today who
have already taken jobs in town.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Right.
Mr. EPPERSON. They have seen this coming. Their wives have

taken jobs. They have taken jobs in town and are using the dollars
to pay off the farm debt, yet they cannot count the income as total
family income. They cannot offset losses with this income so they
become ineligible under the biggest pot of money available andthat is title II funds.

Mr. WOODWARD. An example of what happened 2 days ago in our
office and how that affects people, we had a farmer come in want-
ing to know about the services, we talked with him. Last spring
more than 6 months ago, which is our income determination guide-
line for title III, he bought his fertilizer and seed and paid for it,and the same morning that he came to town to see us, before he
came to us he stopped and sold his beansreal poor planning. The
guy wasn't aware, but had he been able to come and see uswhenI would say to him you should have come to see us first, he said I
don't have a choice, the beans have to go.

But the income received from the beans just blew him out of the
water as far as any sort of eligibility for JTPA.

So expenses of more than 6 months ago have nothing to do with
income at this point.

So the yearly picture is the guy is going to show a loss but the 6
month picture is he is way over the guidelines.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Is a year long enough? Should it be 2 years?
Mr. WOODWARD. Should be maybe, yes.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The question that was addressed by the two gen-

tlemen that preceded you gentlemen, they both responded to a
newspaper ad to find out what services were available in the pro-gram. Do you have any ideas or thoughts on how we can do a
better job of getting the word out that there is something avail-
able?

Again I address it to all three of you.
Mr. EPPERSON. The approach we have taken, and the gentleman

is here in the room, is to hire a staff person, dislocated farmer staff
person as we call him, if you will. That individual is charged with
the responsibility of contacting every lending agency in our eight-
county area, all the bankers, et cetera, and identifying JTPA as a
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source of referral that the bankers can make when they won't
extend credit, foreclose, or naturally see that it is fairly obvious
these folks are not going to make it.

Then that contact can serve as a referral bac1; to JTPA. We
think that that is one good way to do it.

Otherwise I cannot speak for the other gentlemen but we have
used ads, we worked through every organization that comes in con-
tact with farmers and I just don't know how else we would spread
the word any better actually.

Mr. JERRY SMITH. I would say we need to do a better job in mar-
keting for this population. Traditionally I was involved with the
CETA Program basically for its entire duration. Most of the struc-
turally unemployed people are fairly familiar with services that
are being provided, JTPA or CETA. This is a new population for us
to work with. They are not aware that we exist in many cases and
I think we have to do a much better job of marketing, whether it is
through the newspapers, radio, contacting any institutions, and ba-
sically people that are coming in contact with farmers as they real-
ize the situation as it is.

Mr. WOODWARD. We also work closely with the extension office
throughout the State, locally, and in conjunction with them in com-
munity colleges and in our program we have offered career alter-
natives to farming workshops three times in the last 12 months.

Now, we have had four people show up at those workshops. I
don't know if it is not enough advertising. I don't know if it is the
problem that was mentioned about pride, that sort of thing.

I am not sure what or why we have not gotten more. I think we
have mnde efforts but apparently not well enough yet, anyway.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. This is more an observation than a question. My
sense of it is that I think it is pretty obvious we are dealing with a
different type of people than the hourly wage earner who is accus-
tomed, as has been pointed out, to the various benefits and this
sort of thing, and that with a paycheck coming in, it is more cer-
tain, and you know when it will be cut off.

But here you are dea ling with basically an independent business
person who doesn't rea ly look to those types of assistance.

One area that has established support groups, Mr. Woodward, is
in your area. It is the Des Moines Area Community College, and
looking through the testimony, they feel they can qualify people.
But one other group, a mental health clinic, established support
groups but they are discouraging farmers from going to JTPA, be-
cause they feel they won't qualify.

If we have that support in the private sector, it would seem
maybe there is some way to join hands with those people and make
the programs work together. Any ideas along that line?

Mr. JERRY SMITH. In our area, Congressman, we are starting to
make progress in those types of areas and in getting back to some
of the economic development efforts that are done locally.

We are starting to do some such things as labor surveys and at-
tempting to find out just how many or what population we have
available to work within our areas

We have received a VISTA grant and we will have eight V1STA's
in our area. They are basically local VISTA'S which will help us do
outreach and identification and so on of individuals.
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There are several support groups out there. We are just needing
to coordinate the services a little better.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Am I correct in what you are telling us then
that, No. 1, identity is the big problem, who needs the service and
who is available for it and defining just who they are so they can
qualify,

Mr. EPPERSON. I think that is accurate.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. That is what you are facing in the field.
Mr. EPPERSON. Yes, that is accurate.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The surrounding States have developed pro-

grams, Kansas has one, Nebraska has Farmers in Transition, I
think they call it that and Minnesota now apparently has taken
the lead in getting people into the program to inake it work.

I know several of you mentioned money as being a problem and
we certainly recognize that. But on the other side of the coin, I
think it is important we get the most bang for the buck, and since
there is a great degree of flexibility, such as in this particular pro-
gramI Euess, Mr. Smith, I will dire this to you since you are
the leader of the group herewhy shouldn't Iowa take the bit in
their mouths and run with it and be out right in front? Why has
Minnesota moved out ahead of us apparently?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Well, I am not sure I would agree that Minne-
sota necessarily moved out ahead of us. They were able to secure a
tnillion-dollar title III discretionary grant last year which has al-
lo-xed them to reach a population, especially in the southern part
of the State. We did not have access to that. We did apply for
funds, but did not receive any last year.

In dealing with the dislocated worker program, there is rwt a
shortage of people eligible for the program. As I indicated in my
testimony, we might have as many as 50,000 people that potential-
ly could be eligible just because of the farm economy.

We also have a company, Rath's Packing in Waterloo, that closed
and left 1,500 unemployed, John Deere let off another 480 produc-
tion workers, Firestone in Des Moines is laying 500 people offall
these jobs are agriculture related. There is no shortage for trying
to find participants with whom to work.

One of the first responses to your question is that in dealing with
the program throughout the State, I think each one of the dislocat-
ed worker centersall three of these gentlemen can affirm or deny
thishave to make a list of priorities. They have plenty of people
to enroll.

What we have not done in the State, and I think we need to do
this, is to target on farmers because we know that will be a heavily
impacted area for the next year. That is why we are looking at cer-
tain provisions under JTPA to do that now.

We expect that we will be doing that now. There is plenty of
flexibility there. I don't think that is the fault of the law.

I think the critical problem is the lack of adequate money. We
can talk about markets and we can talk about outreach and intake
and so on, but when you get an area like Creston with a budget of
$50,000 to run a 12-month program, all those options don't mean a
thing to them unless they have some money to do that. That is gen-
erally our problem.
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I guess what scares us is that we will lose maybe up to a million
dollars of our title III money simply because of the cut next year.
We feel it is grossly unfair to the State. The reason given was that
States did not spend the money. When you look individually at
States, you will find that this is not necessarily true for the rural
States.

From what I understand, California didn't spend any of its title
III money in the first 9 months. So we are getting penaliz be-
cause of that. I think that is the adjustment that definitely has to
be made somewhere along the line.

I think we have to take a more aggressive leadership role at the
State level. We are trying to move into that. We have seen the fig-
ures. I gr.ve you some of them.

We know what is going to happen in the next 2 years in this
State. We have to start using whatever we can. Even though they
might be inadequate, there are good provisions there and we need
to use them.

A', the same time we need to keep the Congress informed.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. You mentioned Rath's and John Deere and some

other layoffs, how does the Governor decide where he targets JTPA
money? Does he target more toward the plant closings than he
does to farmers?

What is the scenario behind making the decision of what funds
you do have available and where they are targeted?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Generally, what we have done with the pro-
gram under title III is to use the formula based in the law to dis-
tribute the money equitably to each of the 16 areas of the State.

We have delegated the authority to each one of the private in-
dustry councils that oversee the dislocated worker program to
decide what priorities they will have in using that money.

We have not taken any of the formula title III money and desig-
nated it for any particular company or group. What we have done
is to use unspent carryover money from the previous year, for spe-
cial projects. We did that for two farm projects last year, one in
Creston, one in Sioux City. We are doing it this year for small
projects, such as Ruth's, John Deere, and Firestone.

As far as the discretionary money from the Secretary of Labor is
concerned, we have prepared and submitted applications based
upon information available to us. That is where we received the
$500,000 grant this year. We opened the possibility to each of the
service delivery areas to submit a grant applicaticn for funding
from that source.

We had five applications which came in this year. They were
submitted to the Secretary and turned down. We intend to rework
them and resubmit them later.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I intend to ask the Labor witness about the title
III money to see if we can get more targeted for the farm communi-
ties.

Now back to my question on Minnesota, I guess my perception is
that where they may have stepped ahead of us is they have ex-
panded their definition of who is eligible to come into the program.

Is there any movement along that line in Iowa? Will we expand
the definition so that--

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes.
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Mr. LIGHTFOOT. The State of Minnesota got by with it, so to
speak. It got through DOL.

Is the State of Iowa behind something similar?
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. We will rework the definition and, as I say, we

were the first to use it. Other States copied our exact definition.
That was a conservative definition.

We had to find something in the law that let us have a point of
termination from farming. The law doesn't deal with the self-em-
ployed person.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Right.
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. So that a farmer doesn't get a layoff notice or,

a notice of a plant closing. So we had to find something along that
line. That is where we came up vv th that definition.

We think there are ways that we can more liberally interpret
that and we will do that. But at the same time we will ask the
DOL to help us with that process because they are not on the front
line l:Ae these people are.

Yet, they sometimes in the pastthat is not necessarily true
nowbut in the past they have had the luxury to come in 1. d
second-guess every decision being made and they can declare some-
one ineligible, disallow costs and create a tremendous liability for
those involved in that process. We are afraid of that.

But I think under the partnership, if the new Secretary of Labor
can start taking a leadership position, and there are lots of encour-
aging signs that he will do this, and quit trying to undo the em-
ployment and training system as some predecessors have, then I
think we can start working candidly in a partnership like this law
envisions to solve some of these problems.

But repeatedly in the past, we have asked questions and never
got answers. You have heard all this before and I don't need to go
into that here, but I am encouraged by the signs I have seen in the
last 6 months. I really feel we will be able to move forward in this
area.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Has the DOL questioned you on what you have
done sc far?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. No, they have not.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Do you view that as a good sign?
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes, we do. Yes. But we also know that having

had some experience with CETA and knowing we are still dealing
with disallowed costs under that system and that we are in the
process of litigation on that now, we can't always believe every-
thing we hear. That is the tone I think the DOL has to work close-
ly with the States on.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I think you were alluding to it a moment ago.
There was criticism that the Department of Labor has been more
of a policing agency than an administrative agency in the past, and
under Secretary Brock there appears to be a move to go in just the
opposite direction, which I think is a very positive sign.

Time always becomes a problem in anything we get into on this.
Do you feel there is a way or is there a good enough working rela-
tionship between your agency and the Department of Labor that,
say, you come up with an expanded definition of who can qualify
and so on, and in order to cut a lot of redtape and move this defini-
tion forward rapidly maybe a telephone conference, or a quick get-
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together with somebody in the Department of Labor to see if this
thing will fly to get it going because this all appears to be some-
thing that is bearing down on us.

One of our two farm witnesses said, and at least my perception of
this whole situation is that you consider pride and all the other fac-
tors, a lot of farm people including businessmen and bankers didn't
admit we had a problem out here until it got to the point you
couldn't ignore it any further.

If we would have admitted it earlier, we may have been able to
have softened it, maybe not avoided it, but we could have softened
it. But now we reach a critical point where something will have tohappen quickly.

Do you feel there is an avenue with Labor where we can make it
work?

We are dealing in a brandnew ball game in my opinion. It is a
different set of people, different set of circumstances, and frankly,
very few people understand it.

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. You are exactly right, yes.
I do think that we can get a quick response from the Department

of Labor on this. I am more optimistic than I was 6 months ago,
but to do that we will need assistance. Someone has to give some-
one out there a message that this is a top priority. I don't care if it
is formal or informal, but we want them to answer some questions
occasionally. If we are wrong, tell us, and we will try something
else.

But what is frustrating is when they don't say we are wrong or
right. So what they do is let some auditor 3 years from now make
that decision for us, and that is not good.

In my testimony I indicated that it wt uld be encouraging if the
DOL could put together a task forc6 We have all been through
that before. We have been task force -I to death. But a working
group working closely with the Assist, int Secretary for Employ-
ment and Training, to look at this prol: iem now will be very help-
ful to those States faced with this p-.oblem over the next 3 to 5
years.

The DOL could really take a leadership role by working with the
States, focusi, on program options, and on what research and de-
velopment ei,orts can be done in such areas as outreach and early
intervention.

How do we do that, though? How can we help the Jerry Smiths
and Gary Woodwards out there, frustrated because they put on
work shops and nobody comes? Yet we know hundreds of people
are eligible.

If we could focus on that and get help from the Department of
Labor, I think it would do a world of good. I believe the atmosphere
is right and the DOL should certainly be interested.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. We are more than willing to work with you on it.
I think one of the problems is communication. We are going to
have to improve communications between Congress and the Iowa
Department of Planning and Programming, the Department of
Labor and other States.

For lack of a better definition, maybe we can get some of the bu-
reaucracy out of it and get down to people-to-people contact and sit
down and work things out more quickly.

6 0
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One last question Are you planning to apply for any more dis-
cretionary money?

Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes, we are. We will be applying for at least
$900,000 more probably within the next 3 weeks.

We will focus those applications on the three plants I mentioned:
Rath's, John Deere, and Firestone. And we have not yet found out
why our applications were turned down previously, but we are
working with DOL and we will find that out and resubmit it.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, gentlemen.
Mr. NIELSON. Thank you.
I have a list of nine questions, but I don't have the time to go

into them. Would you submit answers to these for the record?
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Yes.
Mr. NIELSON. They include some questions by Congressman

Lightfoot. For example, it asks, what title III money do you have
unused in the State of Iowa?

A question like, does the Governor intend to give what money he
has discretion over to the plant layoffs rather than agriculture?
How closely does he work with other Midwest States for sugges-
tions and cooperation?

What can you do with the carryover you have this year? Is there
a discrepancy from your figures that you cite and the Department
of Labor's figures?

Of course, there are other questions about how closely you work
with the Department of Labor.

I will submit them for the record and let you answer them and
save the time of the gro p here.

[Submissions to additional que stions of Mr. Neilson and Mr.
Lightfoot follow:]
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QUESTIONS FOR PHIL SMITH

Question: I've noticed that the State of Mi ,esota has expanded its definition

to include those farmers who a, 'n the vocess of losing their main

source of income. Does the Governor plan to expand this

definition-because right now I'm told that many farmers can't cnalify.

Answer: Yes. The State of Iowa will revise its Pligibility guidelines for

Title III applicants who are self-employed. A copy of the new

definition, which takes effect December 2, 1965 is attached.

Question: Of the Title III money that the Governor controls, how does he decide

where it goes? Does he have a tendency to give it to plant closing or

layoff, rather than to a hignly dispersed labor force, such as

farmers?

Answer: All of the new federal Title III allocation, plus approximately one

million dollars in state appropriated funds, is distributed by formula

to Iowa's 16 dislocated worker centers. This money is awarded with

the directive that the local dislocated worker plan include provisions

for targeting some of the money to services for dislocated farmers.

Carry over funds from the previous year are used to fund specific

plant closing or layoff projects or special efforts for farmers.

These funds are awarded on a competitive basis to the dislocated

worker centers.



59

Question: Of all the farmers who could use your help, approximately what

percentage are you able to help? Why are some farmers slipping

through the cracks? How might we make sure that they don't?

Answer: A very rough estimate of the potential number of farmers eligible for

services through the program would be in the range of six to eight

thousand during the 1986 calendar year. To date, we have been able to

enroll abcut 320. Another 385 are planned for enrollment in the new

program being financed by the $500,000 grant from the Secretary of

Labor (Title III Discretionary). This is a significant effort, but

falls short of the projected need. Many farmers are not being served

because of the lack of adequate program dollars and the difficulty in

reaching farmers who might qualify. Many farmers ao not want to talk

abot retraining. They want to stay in farming. Most of them become

interested only after it is clear that they need to find another

source of employment.

Two things will help in this area. First, we need to improve our

outreach efforts and secondly we need to intervene quicker with our

counselina services. Unfortunately, we simply can not afford to offer

either of these services to the extent they are needcd. But, some

definite progress has been made over the past year. Resources are

better coordinated, the general public is more aware of the need, and

networks of service organizations are being developed.
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Question: Do you see a need for a temperary mini-JTPA to serve only farmers?

How would it be structured? What would be some of its provisions?

Answer: Yes. I believe the Secretary of Labor has the authority under Section

301(c) of Title III to reserve fund-, for this purpose and target them

towards dislocated farmers and related agri-businesses. These funds

could be administered through this national employment and training

.ystem by having the Secretary of Labor award grant funds to impacted

States. States in turn could then either run the money through their

already established Title III programs, or they could set up a series

of special projects. In Iowa, we would integrate the program into our

on-going efforts, dedicate some staff to serve only farmers, and

emphasize outreach and counseling services as well as job search

assistance and retraining. One of the most important components would

be to help farmers rebuild their self confidence.

Question: How closely do you work with other Midwestern states on this issue?

How closely do you work with other state agencies, such as the Iowa

Department of Agriculture?

Answer: We are in regular communication. In our four state region (Kansas,

Missouri, Nebraska and Iowa), State JTPA staff meet quarterly to

discuss various issues and to meet with regional DOL staff. In

addition, we communicate frequently by telephone. Occasionally, staff

will visit another state to pick up ideas and discuss problems. In

this particular region, we drafted a policy statement for the 13 State

Midwestern Governors Conference asking DOL to target some Title III

resources to agri-business. This was adopted by the Governors' this

fall and forwarded to the Department of Labor. A copy of Governor

Carlin's letter to Secretary Brock is attached.

6 4
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Question: Will the State of Iowa have a large carry-over at the end of this

program year? Do these figures conflict with the Department of

Labor's figures? If so, why the discrepancy?

Answer: No. Our unspent carry-over money from Title III for the PY '84 period

(July 1, 1984 - June 30, 1985) was $190,986, which is less than 10% of

the total amount available to Iowa. The GAO estimated our carry-over

as $818,000, so there is a significant conflict. The DOL does not

close out grants annually, and uses estimated reports. Therefore

their figures are often inaccurate. Unfortunately, this misleads

Congress and penalized states such as Iowa.

Question: Can you tell us how a reduction in Title III money will affect the

State's ability to serve farmers? How does th. State plan to deal

with this cutback? Do you plan to scale back your services?

Answer: The planned cut of $122 million in Title III funds will mean a loss of

about $ one million to Iowa. If this is not adjusted by Congress, or

the DOL through the use of the Secretary's reserve account, the State

will serve 1,000 - 1,200 fewer clients next year. In addition, the

quality of services will drop. More emphasis will be placed upon

pre-employment training and job search assistance than on retraining.

We do intend to target about $275,000 of our Title IIA Section 123,

(State Education Coordination and Grants) funds to farmer assistance

projects. Other than this, we simply will not have the resources to

target formula money to farmers. Although farmers will be eligible

for the services, they will be in competition with other unemployed

workers for JTPA assistance. Some will be enrolled. Many more will

not be served.

6b
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question: How closely do you vat-% with the Departr nt of Labor and the local

JTPA offices?

Answer: On program compliance icsues, we work closely with the Department of

Labor. On matters of program design or policy development, there is

very little interaction. The Department of Labor has taken a "hands

off" approach to this area. This has allowed States greater freedom

which is good. However, DOL still must be an active partner in the

process of providing leadership, and advocacy for the OTPA programs,

and in helping states respond to the demands placed upon them.

With respect to local JTPA offices, we have continuous contacts with

them in such areas ranging from financial reporting to staff

development and training. Our staff meets with SDI, directors on a

monthly basis.

Ouestion: Should the Title IIA eligibility requirements be changed?

Answer: Yes. If Title III funds are reduced, then states should have the

option of serving more dislocated workers under Title IIA.
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Iowa Definition of Dislocated Worker

Dislocated (Displaced) Worker - Any individual who is residing at an
address within the State of Iowa at the time of application and:

(a) is terminated or laid-off, is eligible for or has exhausted
entitlement to unemployment compensatIon, and is unlikely to
return to the individual's previous industry or occupation; or;

(b) is in receipt of a notice of termination or lay-off from
employment, will be entitled to unemployment compensation at the
time of lay-off or termination, and is unlikely to return to the
individual's previous industry or occupation; o-

(c) is terminated, or who has received a notice of termination of
employment, as a result of any permanent closure of a plant or
facility; or

(d) is long-term unemployed and has limited opportunities for
employment or re-employment in the same or a similar occupation
in the area in which such individuals reside, including any older
individual who may have substantial barriers to employment by
reason of age.

Once an individual has been terminated or laid-off from a job, that person
is considered to be a dislocated worker from that job until such time as he
or she works full-time for eleven (11) consecutive weeks for one employer.
For purposes of this definition, full-time is considered to be forty (40)
hours per week. If the person is subsequently laid-off or terminated from
the second job, that person may be a dislocated worker from that second
job. A redetermination of eligibility as a displocated worker from that
second job would be necessary.

In the case of a self-employed individual, "terminated, or has received a
notice of termination" means probable permanent business dissolution as
evidenced by the individual's written declaration and proof of:
foreclosure; bankruptcy; filing of bankruptcy; no profit shown during the
last twelve months; or inability to secure capital necessary to continue
the business operation. Farmers are to be considered self-employed
individuals.
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The Honorable William Brock
Secretary of Labor
United States Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20210

Dear Secretary Brock:

November 18, 1985

Unemployment is a national problem that requires the eooperatior of the State and
national governments to solve. Of particular concern to the midwestern states is
unemployment stemming from the agricultural crisis. The jobless :ic.ims of this crisis
include workers who build farm implements, employees of local seed dealers and
production farmers. Unfortunately, not all of the jobs lost because of the farm crisis
can be identified as such. The numbers and scope of the problem are staggering. The
states of the midwest need special assistance in dealing with the agricultural
unemployment issue.

It is estimated that between 12 and 18 pereent of our nation's farms will be forcA
out of business over the next three years because of financial difficulties. The
magnitude of this problem can be clearly demonstrated. The debt-to-asset ratio is the
most straightf,rward indicator of the severe financial stress currently suffered by
farmers as a group. Most experts agree that farms with debt-to-asset ratios over 40
percent are vulnerable to the effects of financial stress. The current national
debt-to-asset ratio for all farmers is about 32 percent. The problem is most critical
in the central region of the Uaited States where the average ratio is more than 38
percent. Younger farmers in the midwest are suffering the hardest. The average
debt-to-asset ratio for farmers in the central region of the country between the ages of
45 and 54 is 44.128 percent, for farmers between 35 aria 44, it is 56.830 percent; and
for farmers under 35, it is 55.100 percent. These younger farmers are facing the most
serious economic trouble and, because of their ages, are also the most appropriate
candidates for retraining.

In the nation as a whole, over 30 perCent of all farmers face a debt-to-asset ratio
of over 40 percent. Farmers in this category hold over 60 percent of total farm debt.
Due to the high debt concentration in the agricultural sector, 7 to 17 percent of all
farm operstions will have to be liquidated to service the current outstanding debt.
Assuming that some corrective action is taken and debt losses amount to only
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$2,)-92'.. billion, hetwce, 175,00h and 275,000 .jobr will be lost througu.oit the nation's

ecenomy. This further translates into a reduction in the gross national product of

58,7-s13.7 billion by 1989. These statistics were generated by a study jointly prepared

by Farm Journal, Food and Agricultural Policy Research Institute (FAPRI) at Iowa State

University, FAPRI at University of Missouri and Wharton Econometrics.

Although we hope these gloomy predictions
will not become reality, it is ulear that

the farm crisis is significantly contributing to our unemployment problem. We, as

Governors of the Midwestern Governors. Conference, request that you designate $11

million or 20 percent of the JTPA Title III Dislocated Worker Funds reserved by the

Secretary to be used by states who design special programs to deal with persons

dislocated due to the farm crisis. Given your approval of this request, we Governors of

the midwestern states who are a party to this request would pro^eed on an individual

basis to develop individual state proposals to submit for your funding approval from the

designated portion of this discretionary fund.

necaLtIr Of nature of une,ployment Statistics, self-employed displaced farmers

are not counted as part of the unemployed. Since regular JTPA monies are allocated on

the basis of unemployment statistics,
ngricultural has d states do not receive adequate

funds to address the needs of this pool of unemployed Americans, while at the same time

attempting to serve the increasing numbers of these dislocated due to industrial layoffs.

Many Midwestern states are currently targeting Title 111 formula funda and state

appropriations for dislocated farmers. Those effoets have certainly helped, but the

need is greater than the resources presently available. These designated funds that we

ate requesting would more equitably
balance the resources provided those states where a

significant portion of the unemployment problem is not reflected by unemployment

statistics.

President Reagan has expressed his commitment to assisting our farmers who are

losing their farms. The JTPA program Le SPecifically designed tO allow states to deal

with problems that uniquely affect them; and, as we understand it, the discretionary

fund was created to enable the Secretary to target
resources to critical areas of need.

The designation of a specific portion Of the fund for midwestern farmers appears

appropriate and necessary.

states are addressing the agricultural unemployment problems in new and creative

ways. The problem, of course, is the lack of funds to deliver the services. The

Governors of the Midwestern Conference unanimously support
the designation of a portion

of these discretionary funds as a ary for states and the federal government to

cooperatively address this issue of national conCern.

On behalf of all of the Governors of the Midwestern Governors' Conference, I urge

your careful and prompt consideration of this uest.
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Mr. NIELSON. We need to know where you are coming from. I un-derstand that Iowa has been on the cutting edge with this program.I encourage you to stay in the forefront and any inference thatMinnesota got ahead of you because they got $1 million and youonly got $500,000, don't let that stop you.
Mr. PHILIP SMITH. Well, we are just getting prepared for the

Iowa-Minnesota football game.
Mr. Nnia-som. I see. I have an interesting game in my home com-munity, BYU. They are playing the Air Force Academy tomorrow.

It should be a good game.
Let me ask the JTPA administrators, how many farmers come toyou for help at JTPA? Can you give me a number, say in the last 6months?
Mr. WOODWARD. I think it ispeople that actually meet the defi-nition?
Mr. NIELSON. No. No, those that apply.
MT. WOODWARD. OK. I would say--
Mr. NIELSON. Fifty probably?
MT. WOODWARD. Fifty.
MT. NIELSON. Mr. Smith.
Mr. JERRY SMITH. In the past 6 months, we have not had a lot.1,ast spring when Mr. Broich entered our program at Creston, we

received approximately 170 inquiries.
MT. NIELSON. 170.
Mr. EPPERSON. Farmers who come to us are only a handful, halfa dozen.
Mr. NIELSON. Of those who do come, what percentage can youhelp of those who meet the requirements, 50 percent, 20?
Mr. WOODWARD. Ten percent.
Mr. EPPERSON. The ones who come to us, basically 100 percent.They basically made their decision so we can serve them. Thosewho have not made the decision are the problem.
Mr. NIELSON. Mr. Woodward made the suggestion that you usethe 1-year expense picture to get a better picture, since over thelast year or 6 months, farmers may have had a good 6 months andvery bad last 6 months.
You mentioned the case where the last 6 months are good, but

the whole year is bad. It _!ould be the other way around.Shouldn't there be a way to look at the total year and the last 6months and consider both so that if you qualify under either one,you would then qualify for JTPA? Would that be a fairer measure?Mr. FRANK. The court reporter is not going to get the head nods.
Mr. JERRY SMITH. Oh, OK. I would say that an either/or situa-tion would be very valuable.
Mr. NIELSON. I can see a case where you get a good 6-monthperiod but over a year, it is pretty bad.
There was a suggestion made earlier about allowing farmers tostart being eligible when the debt-to-asset ratio becomes dangerous.How do you feel about that?
Mr. WOODWARD. I am not sure how that would work. Mr. Epper-

son knows more about that than I, or at what point you reach, 40,45 or whatever, are you finished, and is there any way you can getout of that. I don't know that really.
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Mr. NIELsoN. You mentioned you help about 10 percent, Mr.
Woodward. What do you do with those you can't help?

Mr. WOODWARD. The 10 percent I talked about were the 10 per-
cent eligible.

Mr. NIEISON. What do you do with the 90 percent? What sugges-
tions do you have?

Mr. WOODWARD. If they have not been to the extension service,
one wouldthey have a program called Assist at Iowa State Exten-
sion Service, and so referrals to other agencies are made.

Mr. NIELSON. Have any of you discussed the idea of changing the
program with Phil Smith or the Governor's office on a program
level?

Mr. WOODWARD. Yes.
Mr. JERRY SMITH. I v, uuld say that we, the officethey have

been working very closely with us during the past 6 months espe-
cially, as we have identified problems and they are trying to re-
spond to the problems, yes.

Mr. NIELSON. Are you ever able to offer training services to the
spouse of the farmer?

Mr. EPPERSON. You bet.
Mr. NIELSON. You have worked with the program.
Mr. EPPERSON. We have served more wives than farmers.
Mr. WOODWARD. That is true with us, too.
Mr. NIELSON. What is the criteria for the spouse? Could they

come in on their own even, to get training for a job just to supple-
ment the farm income in general, she could get a--

Mr. WOODWARD. Criteria is for the family, not the individual.
Mr. NIELSON. SO it is a family, and not an individual thing.
I have a lot of other questions, but I will return the time to the

chairman, and I appreciate the opportunity.
We in the minority don't usually preside, but when we do, it is

only a moment or two. I came to this Congress and had been the
majority leader of the Utah House, and also speaker and I loved to
wield that gavel.

Mr. FRANK [presiding]. Well, I have no further questions.
I appreciate your being here.
Our final witness is Mr. Fred Romero, Administrator, Office of

Strategic Planning and Policy Development, Employment and
Training Administration, U.S. Department of Labor.

STATEMENT OF FRED ROMERO, ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF
STRATEGIC PLANNING AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT, EMPLOY-
MENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
LABOR
Mr. ROMERO. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. FRANK. We appreciate your joining us.
We think it is relevant for both members of the legislative

branch and the executive branch to be from time to time in other
parts of the country than Washington. We realize you agree with
us on that, and we appreciate your attending.

Please proceed.
Mr. ROMERO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and members

of the subcommittee.

71
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I will highlight the prepared text that I have, and with your per-
nrssion, submit the full text.

Deputy Assistant Secretary Roberts Jones recently testified
before your subcommittee and described the types of programs we
have which are available to assist displaced workers in general.
The programs he mentioned included unemployment compensa-
tion, the employment service and of course the Job Training Part-
nership Act, specifically title III of JTPA. It is the latter program
that is the focus of today's hearing.

The title Lli JTPA Dislocated Worker Program is State operated
and addresses the reemployment needs of all categories of dislocat-
ed workers. Dislocated workers are provided training, job search,
and relocation assistance and other supportive services. Under title
III, 75 percent of the Federal funds are allocated to the States on a
formula basis. States design and operate their own programs to re-
spond to the individual needs and labor market within their States.

The remaining 25 percent of the title III funds is distributed by
the Secretary of Labor to States with critical unemployment prob-
lems and large pockets of worker dislocation. States submit propos-
als to the Department of Labor for these funds, and we review
them and approve or disapprove them. In determining which pro-
posals to fund, we consider the severity of need, the availability of
title III formula funds to address the problem, and the availability
of other resources. In addition, we look at the soundness and speci-
ficity of the retraining and other services that are designed to lead
to new jobs for these workers.

In short, we look for the strategy for positive adjustment of these
impacted workers and farmers.

It has been mentioned here that when JTPA was enacted in
1982, a target group of dislocated farmers in need of services was
not envisioned. Therefore, the act and the legislative history are
silent on whether dislocated farm workers and those displaced
from related agricultural industries are to be included under title
III dislocated worker programs.

Despite the absence of specific language to include farmers, dis-
cretionary projects to assist farmers have been funded from the
earliest days of the title III program. However, while some States,
and Iowa is among them, were interpreting JTPA so that those dis-
placed from farms were eligible for participation in title III pro-
grams, other States were unclear as to whether they had the au-
thority to make this critical decision.

As a result of numerous inquiries we have been receiving on the
matter and congressional interest to have dislocated workers on
farms and the agricultural economy included under the broad defi-
nition of dislocated workers under JTPA, the Employment and
Training Administration issued a notice clarifying that dislocated
farmers could indeed be served under title III.

We have furnished to the subcommittee a list of all proposals re-
ceived and projects funded since the inception of JTPA that relate
to farmers. I note that Iowa, and Mr. Smith has so indicated, re-
cently received $500,000 for a proposal which they submitted to the
Secretary for funding out of the national reserve fund.

Mr. Chairman, I assure you that we are sensitive and concerned
about the plight of displaced farmers and others dislocated in the

72
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agriculture economy, as a part of the larger dislocated worker
problem.

I am particularly interested in hearing ideas and suggestions of
those who will testify and have test 'led, and as a matter of fact, I
have learned a lot at this hearing ieady.

I will be glad to answer or attempt to answer any questions you
may hnve.

Mr. FRANK. Thank you very much, Mr. Romero. We appreciate
it.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Romero follows:1



70

STATEMENT OF
FRED E. ROMERO

ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING
AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

BEFORE THE
EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE

HOUSE GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

November 15, 1985

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I appreciate the opportunity to be here in Council Bluffs

with you this morning to discuss the ways in wnich farmers

are being assisted under the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA).

This country now has more than 3 million farmers. They

are the vital first step in the chain of the American agricul-

tural system, which currently comprises nearly 20 percent of

the Nation's gross national product. In recent years, many

farmers and others in the agriculture system have encountered

difficult times, with some farmers losing their farms and their

employees being laid off and forced to look for other types

of jobs.

Others are more qualified than I to discuss the causes

of and long-term cures for this situation. The Department

of Labor does administer program3 which can provide immediate

help to some of those who have lost their jobs or source of

income in the agricultural sector.
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Deputy Assistant Secretary Roberts T. Jones recently testi-

fied before your subcommittee, and described the types of pro-

grams we have which are available to assist displaced workers

in general. These include unemployment compensation, the employ-

ment service, and the Dislocated Worker Program authorized

under Title III of JTPA. It is the latter program that is

the focus of today's hearing.

The Title III JTPA Dislocated worker Program is State

operated and addresses thn reemployment needs of all categories

of dislocated workers. Dislocated workers are p:ovided training,

job search and relocation assistance and other supportive ser-

vices. Unde'r Title III, 75 percent of the Federal funds are

allocated to the States on a formula basis. States design

and operate their own programs to respond to the individual

needs and labor market within their States.

Iowa has received $1.7 million for the Program Year which

ends in June, 1986. The State is providing an equal amount

of matching funds. My colleague from the State of Iowa can

address how those funds are being utilized.

The remaining 25 percent of the Title III funds is distri-

buted by the Secretary of Labor to States with critical unemploy-

ment problems and large pockets of worker dislocation. States

submit proposals to the Department of Labor for these funds.
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In determining which proposals to fund, we consider the severity

of need, the availability of Title III formWa funds to address

the problem, and the availability of other resources. In addi-

tion, we look at the soundness and specificity of the retraining

and other services that are designed to lead to new jobs for

these workers.

When JTPA was enactea in 1982. a target group of dislocated

farmers in need of services was not envisioned. Therefore,

the Act and the legislative history are silent on whether dis-

located farm workers and those displaced from related agricul-

tural industries are to be included under Title III dislocated

worker programs. As indicated in the material submitted to

the Subcommittee, discretionary projects to assist farmers

have been funded from the earliest days of the Title III program.

However, while some States, Iowa among them, were interpreting

JTPA so that those displaced from farms were eligible to partici-

pate in Title III programs, other States were unclear as to

whether they had the authority to make this decision. As a

result of the numerous inquiries we have been receiving on

this matter, and congressional interest expressing a desire

to have workers dislocated from farms and the agricultural

economy included under the broad definition of "dislocated

workers" in JTPA, the Employment and Training Administration
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(ETA) on April 26, 1985 issued a notice clarifying that dislo-

cated farmers could indeed be served under Title /II.

We have furnished to the Subcommittee a list of all pro-

posals received and projects funded since the inception of

JTPA that relate to farmers. / note that Iowa has recently

received 8500,000 from the Secretary's national reserve fund

to provide training and employment services to dislocated farmers

and their families forced out of farming due to foreclosure,

bankruptcy, or inability to raise capital. We are continuing

to consider new proposals as we receive them from the States.

Mr. Chairman, / assure you that we are sensitive to and

concerned about the plight of displaced farmers, and others

dislocated in the agriculture economy, as a part of the larger

dislocated woe:er problem. I am particularly interested in

hearing the ideas and suggestions of those who will testify

at this hearing on how JTPA is being and can be better utilized

to serve this segment of the dislocated worker population.

/ will be glad to answer any questions you may have.

56-292 0 - 86 - 4 7
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Mr. FRANK. We will open the questioning with Mr. Lightfoot.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Romero, reflecting back to the testimony we have had, you

mentioned you picked up some ideas from what you had heard. Is
the Department of Labor in a position to move quickly on some of
these ideas you heard today, or are we going to get tied up in a big,
long, drawn-out process?

Where are you coming from in that particular aspect?
Mr. ROMERO. One of the particular ideas I heard from Mr. Phil

Smith was, I think, quite in order and it would help to elevate the
discussion on the plight of farmers, dislocated farmers. That would
be to create this group and discuss the problems and the way JTPA
can deal with the problem. I think that is the proper step to take.

I think the Assistant Secretary would be happy to meet with this
group and discuss the problems and ways to solve them.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Would you be conducive to bringing USDA in be-
cause they have expertise in this area as well?

Mr. ROMERO. I think it would be most appropriate, yes.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. In terms of money, we heard that mentioned sev-

eral times, the Senate and House both passed bills for a $122 mil-
lion reduction in title III. How could that be helpful to farmers if
there are not enough dollars in the program to serve the eligible
population now? What can we do to change that situation?

Mr. ROMERO. Well, let me review for you what our figures show
with respect to the availability of funds for program year 1985,
which is July 1 this year through June 30, 1986.

We had at the beginning of the 1984 program year a total of $343
million in the system. $185 million of this was carried from pro-
gram year 1984, brought in; and then a total of $222.5 million was
added to that that gave us approximately $407 million for program
year 1985.

In addition, as I surveyed the distributions and expenditure
rates, and so on down the line, I looked at how many States would
expend their allotments for the program year and how much they
would have available for the succeeding program year.

If our calculations are correct, 52 out of the total 57 States and
trust territories would have in excess of 20 percentif spending
continues at the rate they are spending nowwould have an excess
of 20 percent of the funds to carry forward to the next program
year.

Five States are spending the dollars, and would run short actual-
ly. IowaI hate to disagree rrith my colleague, but our records
show at the moment Iowa has about $2.5 million unexpended. This
is in addition to the $500,000 awarded just recently.

Iowa is not included among those five States, and I could be
wrong on that.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. If I understand correctly, the Secretary has the
ability to reallocate title III funds. Do you think he would be will-
ing to shift some of these into the agriculture areas?

Mr. ROMERO. Unfortunately: he does not have the ability to real-
locate the title III funds. He has the ability to fund out of the na-
tional discretionary accounl. in re3ponding to proposals submitted
by the States.
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Mr. LIGHTFOOT. We understand the regulations differently. It in-
dicates here:

The Secretary may reallocate title III allotments if the Secretary determines the
State will be unable to obligate the amount within 1 year of the allotment.

Our information may be incorrect.
One other area that I think we may need some improvement is

again from earlier testimony. It appears when something is turned
down, the possibility of not getting a timely answer as te the rejec-
tion of the proposal is a very real problem. Do you have any sug-
gestions about how we can improve that process?

Mr. ROMERO. I would apologize for the Department if they are
not receiving a timely response on rejections. It is our intent, not
only to review each decision on a proposal submitted, but to do so
within 60 days of submittal.

To my knowledge, the average response rate now is around 45 to
46, 47 days. If they have not received notice, I am prepared to deal
with it.

Mr. LIGHTTOOT. Regarding my questions about reallocating
money among States, the staff has handed me the statute:

The Secretary is authorized to reallocate any amount of any allotment to a State
to the extent the Secretary determines the State will not be able to obligate such
amount within one year of allotment.

So according to this, apparently he does have the authority
I guess I won't belabor that point, but is some of the problem

identifying where we need to go with the money? I think it has
been pointed out here that relying on unemployment statistics is
inaccurate as far as trying to determine the situation with dislocat-
ed farmers.

The last thing we want to do is have you burden us with another
regulation, but it seems we have a problem of determining the allo-
cation of money because we don't have an accurate method of de-
termining who needs it.

Is that a valid assessment?
Mr. ROMERO. It looks like we have an allocation formula prob-

lem. As far as farmers are concerned, that is. The labor force is ori-
ented such that all three factors in the formula relate to unemploy-
ment measures. The question of when tl:e farmer is unemployed is
obviously a major one because that is the whole issue of defining if
a farmer is eligible, part of it lies in when he becomes unemployed.

So it is possible that the current population survey is not picking
up accurate statistics on the farmers' situation because they don't
declare themselves available for workexcuse methey do declare
themselves available for work in the sense they are already em-
ployed. So they are not counted as unemployed even though they
are hurting.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I notice the Job Service people are here and I am
sure they can quickly tell us where we stand as far as traditional-
type workers.

Mr. FRANK. Why don't we bring them forward, if you wish.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Would any of you_ folks like to add to this?
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STATEMENT OF MAX GOODVIN, JOB SERVICE,
COUNCIL BLUFFS, IA

Mr. GOODVIN. I work for Job Service in this area.
Mr. FRANK. Why don't you come forward. We have a very good

court reporter over here if you would just come forward so we canall hear you.
Thank you for coming forward. Please identify yourself.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD MISKIMINS, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAIN-
ING ADMINISTRATION REGIONAL OFFICE, KANSAS CITY, KS
Mr. MISKIMINS. I am Richard Miskimins from the ETA regionaloffice in Kansas City.
Mr. GOODVIN. I am Max Goodvin. I work for Job Service here in

Council Bluffs.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I guess you know what the situation is and

where we are coming from. Can you go to your files and determine
exactly who has left a job and is looking for a job now? It appears,
I guess to reiterate the problem with the allocation, the problem isin coming up with a way to determine how many people are out
there that will need help. You work with this on a day-to-day basis.
What suggestions do you have? Are farmers coming in to see you?

Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, we are having more farmers coming in all the
time. You know, a year ago we started seeing an increase, or
maybe 2 years ago, and the months slip by and each month bringsmore in.

I have to agree with the gentleman here, I think we are going to
have a lot more in the year to come the way it looks.

Mr. FRANK. Let the record show that he was indicating Mr.
Broich.

Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, the gentleman that said there would be more.
The last period of time I can recall in the eight counties in south-
west Iowa, I think our labor force is about 90,000, and we had over
20,000 individuals complete applications for work in our offices in
those 8 counties during that 12-month period which indicates that
there are an awful lot of people out there who maybe are not total-
ly unemployed but are seeking either a second job or an additional
job. I think most of the farm population we see who come in areWU on the farm and trying to find a job to supplement their
income.

Mr. FRANK. If the gentleman will yield; from the statistical
standpoint, we mentioned some of those seeking jobs would be
spouses of farmers. If they had not previously been in the labor
force, they would not be counted unemployed. Is that part of the
problem?

If you had people who had applied, say, wives of farmers who
were not previously working or had not been for sometime, they
would not show up in the unemployment statistics, am I correct, if
they had never been employE 7?

Mr. GM:WIN. I don't think I can answer that.
Mr. MISKIMINS. You are correct.
Mr. FRANK. They would not show up. That is one way you could

have a paradox of a low unemployment figure and a lot of people
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looking for work because spouses who had not previously looked for
jobs don't show up in the figures.

Mr. MISKIMINS. That is right.
Mr. LioirrFooT. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I think

that is a valid point.
Carrying that one step further, with the situation that we are

moving into, would that not be a logical source to look for some of
these people? If someone comes in, as the chairman suggested, who
has not had a job in the past, a paycheck-type job, put it that way,
that that individualthen we can cai-ry that one step further and
advise that particular situation and work that into the formula
possibly, as we were talking with Dr. Romero and determine how
many people are out there. Perhaps you folks can even advertise
on that.

Mr. GoonviN. We have a lot of statistics. I don't know if we
would have just what we need, but we do like I said, have a large
portion of our labor force out there that are putting in applications
for work, far more than what the unemployment ratewell, the
unemployment rate in our area, I think last year, was about 8 per-
cent, 7.8 or 8 percent in this corner of the State and 7.8 percent of
our total labor force is not 20,000 people. That is approximate.

That falls far short of the 20,000 that came in to see us, but what
that says is there are a lot of people out there that are maybe un-
deremployed or still on the farm seeking other second jobs or a dif-
ferent job, a better paying job.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. I guess where I am coming from, you know, I
walked into this job off the street and I am not used to long bu-
reaucratic delays. I like to see things happen, but we are trying to
find a point where we could rapidly start to identify these people
and it appears on the surface at least that you folks are in a posi-
tion to do that.

Mr. GOODVIN. We see a lot of that. We are one of the first places
they come because we have been there a long time and they know
about us.

Mr. NIELSON. Will the gentleman yield?
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Sure.
Mr. NIELSON. Do you refer these people to JTPA?
Mr. GOODVIN. Yes, we do.
Mr. NIELSON. Do you attempt to determine whether they are eli-

gible before you refer them?
Mr. GOODVIN. No, not really. If they appear to bewe don't get

down and determine the income levels and so on. If they appear
that they areif there is any possibility at all, we refer them to
JTPA.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you think you should screen them so that they
don't get discouraged twice?

Mr. GOODVIN. Well, we are in a situation where those 20,000-plus
people, there is just not enough time in a lot of cases.

Mr. NIELSON. Are you worried about the merger of JTPA with
ETA to take care of Job Services through that merged program?

Mr. GoonviN. Not really.
Mr. NIELSON. OK.
Mr. FRANK. If the gentleman will yield, to coattail on that, Mr.

Nielson made a very good point about discouraging people too

81
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often. I hope at least you warn people that they may not be eligible
because people coming to your office are told no and then they go
to JTPA and being told no a second time. That is devastating. I
hope at the least you say, "I don't know if you are eligible," and
prepare them for whatever may happen.

We ran into this with Mr. Broich and Mr. Knutson mentioned it,
the problem of discouragement. Psychological debilitation is a prob-
lem and you don't want to add to that obviously in any way.

I think it's your time.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. No, that's fine. Go ahead. You are making good

points.
Mr. NIELSON. I would like to ask the gentleman from the Labor

Department, Dr. Romero, I &mil know if you have been here the
whole day or not, but there was discussion of how the law could be
changed. It was originally set up to deal with smokestack indus-
tries primarily and now there is a suggestion that Iowa and other
States are using it for agricultural workers, and you have indicated
after studies that that is appropriate.

What have you done to encourage other agricultural States to
follow Iowa's lead? Are you actually--

Mr. ROMERO. Other than seeking clarification, initial clarification
on whether or not dislocated persons should be accommodated--

Mr. NIELSON. You issued the clarification after they brought it to
your attention. Have you brought that clarification to the attention
of other people in the agriculture sector?

Mr. ROMERO. No, sir.
Mr. NIELSON. Why not?
Mr. ROMERO. Because the act allows a lot of flexibility in terms

of establishing practices--
Mr. NIELSON. Bring the mike up close, if you would, Mr. Romero.
Mr. ROMERO. For identifying substantial groups of eligible folks,

it allows that discretion to the States. Those procedures are struc-
tured around three groups of people, those receiving unemploy-
ment insurance or those who exhausted their unemployment, and
those terminated from plants and those long-term unemployed who
are unlikely to return to their industry or occupation.

It is around that one that these folks have structured a definition
for dislocated farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. I understand that, but what role do you think
JTPA should have in regard to farmers? Should it be the primary
tool to help farmers?

Mr. ROMERO. I think it should be, yes, indeed, and it is now.
Mr. NIELSON. Does there have to be legislative changes to give

priority to the farmers in this area where they were not considered
initially?

Mr. ROMERO. I think that the legislation that exists now on the
books is flexible enough to accommodate these farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. It would be adequate provided it was well enough
understood. Most people think of JTPA as industry targeted, like
for downtown Cleveland or a steel plant somewhere, and they don't
think of it as being applicable to a farmer in Iowa. Why don't we
rewrite the legislation or at least put out guidelines so people know
its useful for any misplaced or displaced worker?

8 2



79

Mr. ROMERO. I would prefer the suggestion Mr. Smith has pre-
sented ta you folks and that is that a task group could be formed to
give visibility to the problem, and to me that is a good way of m Ir-
koting the program tc the needy farmers.

Mr. NIELSON. What about the suggestion earlier that most dis-
placed workers nave some kind of unemployment compensation for
18 months or that they have some financial help while in retrain-
ing. shereas the farmer has to wait until he is bankrupt before he
qualifies? What can be done to alleviate that?

We have to give him a chance to get training rather than take
any old job to put bread on the tabl?,. We want to train him for
better work.

Mr. ROMERO. That aspect of it would require new legislation to
deal with that problem.

Mr. NIELSON. Do you think there would be a possibility of merg-
ing the Trade Adjustment Act, TAA, into the JTPA for that pur-
pose?

1 know that is a sticky question.
Mr. ROMERO. The President has already stated a position with re-

spect to the Trade Adjustment Act.
Mr. NIELSON. We will change his mind.
Mr. FRANK. The administration just announced both continu-

ation of the trade adjustment assistance--
Mr. NIELSON. I was able to get it through the Ways and Means

last year, and I will try again, but I think the President is wrong
on that issue. I think he will be overridden if he tries to change
that.

Mr. FRANK. I think so, too.
Mr. NIELSON. So policies aside, do you think it is appropriate to

provide readjustment assistance for these people because of the fact
that they have no financial means in that situation?

Mr. ROMERO. I'm sorry. Congressman, I can't comment on that.
Mr. NirILSON. You would rather not.
Mr. ROMERO. I would rather not.
Mr. NIELSON. We have asked the DOL for a breakdown of State

carryovers of title III funds, we have not yet received that. We
asked for it several days ago. It was due Tuesday of this week. It
has not arrived. Will you get that to us?

Mr. ROMERO. Yes, sir; I will.
Mr. NIELSON. As soon as possible. There seems to be a discrepan-

cy between Iowa's records and your records of how much title III
funds were left over.

[The information requested follows:]
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111441116
191,410 112,001 'WI 117,941 16,1 5,101 1,4 130111 1,1111 Idolcm5 P01A1101 0414,

8



Minn 31A103 004911 P404144 ~313 PANT 11

V1440131,0CAM0 WINNER3 FY 111/44 60013

OfC1001 TnYAL OH

04,1067101111

A04414111

1.9141 1411000 10015

1111.1: 111.00441NO

fiFF4U11091.3 % 4

111%14

INAIONC

F111190110000

% OF 81140111 % IF

10111 1 or

TOTAL 01PflottuP13 tom tifitiottowts TOTAL

Weil) UPEND WINO

12,1119,6bl 1,441,2'4 211,4 2,112,414 11,9 245,141 1,2 415,011 11,1

4Nizim 1,41111Y3 2,961,119 11,1 20111,1O1 16,1 151,630 5,1 519,130 13,1

ocirlowl4 11,296,191 15,221,142 41,4 11,504,131 16,1 11064 4,0 11011,510 19,1

114'111 5214151 10),11/ S1,1 169#2,41 11,4 10109 09 31,115 1061

41130 1,100,20 6516101 i4,5 641,010 11,1 91111 1,4 45,211 1,1

Amio, S440A 11,090 4 0 0 10 0 .0 0

404 670,692 0 .0 I 0 0 0 ,0

h. .491403 15,164 I 0 0 0 I .0 0 .0

903, TEHR, 141,11.1 4
10 A .0 6

OCC1401, MAL 01

40,903,41S 19,111,921 40 14,111,115 16,9 176,114 4,1 1,641,531 1960

4406 ItObl,Oh 294,116 2601 1960619 ,10,3 10000 1,1 14,511 1,1

10011 1,514,049 140,341 50,2 599,111 11,/ 1/1144 500 121,10 11,2

ONF404 1,415,291 ),516,161 91,S 1,141,141 11,1 1,111 0 119,190 1,4
111 1110101E9 6199144 1411,

8



012.1111

Ook1111k1,1 SIAM WW1 PlInnkks AHALVS11 PM 11

aPpnISLOCk10 voklaNS 11 01/04 UAW

7.01111 loom 6-1k-1S

111Lf 111.0741110

011LIOATIAAI, r1114UltORE3 % Of flikINING of SIIPPORT 1 nr

worm s MIN I Of

miLlc WENDITIIM tntkL FIPEnAllOPE6 tOUL EIPE4DITONf1 TOM
, ,

MENU EIPEon mun

wksnisrao

orCION41 ulto, 10

1,116,060 4,122,446 S1,6 1,199015 1,7 241,214 i,6 111,121 22,7

tt,744,417 6,191,261 Ind 7,262,722 610 241,101 1,1 1,1911214 IS,/

MktInsiL 111110

141,461,411 151,161,41n 46,1 niollosr 76,1 10,9O4,111 621 7671121411
101 INPICAtES 01631Nn OkYk.

.1601

8



PEROT 401 0306811

0DARTEN41 STATUS Ponoti MOAN ANALYSIS

JTP1.01SL0CATE0 mottos F111/11 GRANTS

7.01.84 71190064 fo3n.P5

TITLE 111404111NE0

Ng?
TOTAL SEPIED PEP 70111 TEM

sERVED

COST

PER

TERMINATIONS

CURRENT

unourivit

TOTAL

numnITuAts

i

CT 119 11679 649 2,110 190 1,4011111

ME 516 911 415 11111 111 561,111

NA 1,984 999 1,011 140 911 2,2211230

NH 412 104 115 1,052 97 311,152

PI 461 1,172 119 1,910 21 264,10

VT Op 1,293 121 1,760 49 212,911 00

00

REGIONAL TOTA4 01

1,11) 171 4,992 1,111 1,491 5,614,502

NJ 0,199 444 41145 161 9419 1,171,165

MY 1,911 1011 101 1,717 1,110 6,991,011

PR 700 1,611 497 5,096 203 2,511,461

VI 4 41 1,125 19 41110 24 71,476

REGIONAL TOTAL 02

12,012 1,141 6,161 2,217 51020 11,714625

PE 11; 154 561 411 191,519

PC 11% MIA 61S PSI 0 561,044
141 INIIICATEA NIsi1114 OM, PMPVIAHl p$1110 liormivrogrn



REPOT 401 054.111

NAMPO 51411.15 9Ep4471 ppnC444 1441,1115

Con

TOTAL SWED
flit

MHO

014.4151,401En 1o9cE15 F112114 GIANTS

141.11 1490444 L.3,.19

TITLE 111,040IHEn

C451 C491E41

14711 1044 pEp E4401,14111

M01191100

7011L,

E1P(401/14(1

40 2,114 113 2,717 1,411 141 31910,115

pA WO 191 4,249 1,615 4,491 1,171,511

VA 7,012 174 5,40 451 6122 2,450,161

1,249 1,411 154 2,170, 11) 1,112,511

11(010101, TOM 01

22,105 612 14,611 1,042 1,611 15,211010

6L 5,001 1,556 1,064 2,26) 117 1,670,162

FL 2,04, 120 1,111 1,251 611 1,161,171

cp 915 2,104 114 1,161 111 2,20,094

11 2,119 410 1,152 1,110 1,417 1,111,101

Id 2,904 712 2,124 1,011 714 2,156,702

ile 1,415 451 1,714 1,512 4,119 5,710,215

se 5,125 519 1,115 971 2,110 1,021,611

TN 2,215 141 1,422 1,515 151 2,151,111

NECONAL MIL 04

21,514 199 15,441, 0,472 11,414 21,602,701410 MffIVVR 414r1,10 Will 411V401110 liPolgp mft fil4OvffiliV4



AUDIT 601 nw

00ANTERL3 5TSTU3 REPORT1 MORAN 4101315

111.4415LOCATED 9n9KE95 110/14 GRANTS

741.04 MOAN 610.15
TITLE 111'COMNIMFD

TOTIL SERT:D

IL 14,119

IN 11153

Ai OMO

ril

PER

&TAM

19

'1/

1,i0

TOTAL TWO

1,051

5;412

5,107

COST

PER

TE1INIMATID03

109

1;165

2,4::

CURRENT

ENROLLMENT

7,131

2;341

3;073

TOT0

EXPENDITURES

110111051

6;3041251

11,112051 '

1111 WU 519 3,460 191 o 1,101 2,162,519

611 11,521 11! 7,920 1,104 3,701 10,196,150

MI 51452 911 1,510 1;419 10922 5100100

NECIaNIL TOTAL OS

520765 951 320110 140 20;015 50;114016

AR 1,151 12; 1,172 616 1,117 1,255,151

46 151 2,102 411 1,193 111 1,129,712

NI 512 1,102 327 2017 235 157,616

OS 1,116 11! 941 t1164 40 1;00;01

TX 6000 1,231 6,251 1,923 2M) 1;211454

OLGIONiL TATAL 06

I2,904 10021 1,941 106S4 4,931 130161114

IA 1,214 519 2,01 705 101 1;101014

IT1 1110ICATEA 013AINC DATA, MIMI prow OITA

CO



PEW 401 USRXU

0940111LO STATHS AEHIHTI PHOGRAN ANAL1313

JTP4.015L000E0 NHHI(ERS FY12/14 CHANTS

701.11 MOM 130.15

111LE 111.0100INTO

TOTAL SCHan

COST

PEA

3ERVTO

Tont, TERNs

ens?

PER

IEN4 14 AMINS

$

CONRE41

ENROW191

TOTAL '

topENDItoRt5

Hi 1,491 124 994 1,090 504 1,011,911

NO 6,630 451 5,779 573 911 1,002,009

At 961 III 10 1,014 91 115,111

REGIONAL TOTAL 07

17,219 44,1 10,011 666 2071 1,111,152

CO 570 1,076 211 2,509 310 672,117

A? 1,937 170 1,939 199 117 917,710

AO 1117 11191 ID 1,630 49 711,171 i

50 350 617 159 1,51) 191 240,497

01 1,511 156 901 10494 675 1053,111

AT 67 7,119 11 1,461 li 142,002

litGONAL TOTAL OR

14710 742 3,126 1,050 11141 1,491,:57

Al 1,117 113 2,110 1,066 1,007 1,964,14

C4 MI5 672) 5,910 2,546 21155 15,221,142

MI V14 125 721 421 211 101,021

(01 110n1r0T11 4010i110: 0414. oprvInN4 cum nAtA touitttoun



PEPORT 101 01111.III

QUARTERLY STATUS REPOT! PRoGRAO

JTPADISLOCATED mom r101/14 GRANTS

141.14 TIIROIlr,11 1.1045
IIT.CONRINED

TOTAL IIERVED

COT

PEN

SERVED

TOTAL TERI!

CM
PER

TERNINATIONS

ctIRI1ENT

ENROLLWENt

mot.
EXPENDITORE3

or 1 1,371 411 1,064 619 III 151,601

AO 0 1 0 1 n n

CU i 0 1 0 1 0 0

CN 0 1 0 1 0 o

It 0 1 0 1 o 0

REGIONAL TOM, 01

14,311 1,71) 10,545 1,116 011 19,141,921

Al 329 164 74 11,145 303 214,216

ID

ell

615

2,10

1,197

1,215

451

7,355

1,671

1,417

HP

410

160,261

1,516,161

NA 6,916 172 5,011 156 1,111 4,377,446

OICI.ONAL tt1TAL 10

10,175 111 7,110 1,125 7,795 0053,261

11491.110AL TOTAL

171,611 115 113,616 1,1111 611035 151,565,410
(0) INDICATEI mom DATA, PREVIOUS PERM DATA ounsmorro

94

7'



wiP09t 40i 0514.1x

04191EPLI 1'14105 REP11111 1611,E001611014 PPOCIMS

JTPA.U15LUCA7E0 901043 F181/14 010113

1.1144 1810001 630.05

IIII( 111.00110

061G4TlaN41, 01440(1911 4 OF E0PER0110115 nr

uronottr

CI 1,651,906

ME 1,910,461

NI 6,191,61)

NH 1,050,001

PI 1,512,596

91 211,550

natio, 10144 01

12,10,940

114 9,452,411

NY 22,649,519

PR S,191,519

VI 4 205,146

NEG101111, TOM 01

31,106,111

nor

1,101,321

568,111

2,725,210

131,152

164,141

212,954

51614,591

4,171,665

6,991,016

2,512,461

18,416

11,112,625

41.1.01

6

05,3

21,1

31,9

t

71,5

51,2

15,6

41,6

44,2

10,9

41,9

25,1

16,0

c011

70T9t PlO

801E0 5ERVE0

119 1/119

576 901

3,911 152

412 904

462 1,111

110 1,15)

6,44) 111

11)51 146

1,911 1,511

100 1,111

41 1,125

12,081 1,141

1

CONIM

comao

190

111

911

1

21

49

1,491

4,511

1,110

20)

24

5,910

(0) Ii1111CATE6 1135100 04114 P1131008 PE0100 DIII 501157(TUTED

1/.84510 ON rurtomir smo or 11,346
poimn 44 40111071.4 4 44.W.14vto momi, 140wIlhul. IP I. inh

35



REPORT 401 05111

DOARTAPLI STATUS OtPORTI INPLEMENTAT104 PROGRE1I

ePA.DIROCATED WIMPS M1/94 cRANt5
7.01.14 THOUGH p40.1%

TITLE 111CONnINCO

ORLICATIOMAL DHAWDOM 1 or EXPENDITURE! % nr
AUTHORITY ALLOT ALLOT Cnit CURRENT

ETOTAL PER RRriLLTO

ISERVED 1tRYE0

DL 4415.14 191,519 14,1 112 257 111

DC 1,191,439 511,044 12,1 615 1s1; 0

ND 5,401,111 1,920,715 51,1 0,110 1131 141

PI 21,111,321 1,971,541 12,1 1,111 116 1,491

VA 1,110,110 2,00190 64,5 1,012 114 1,221

NV 1,902,05 1,112,511 41,2 1,211 1,411 611

REGIONAL T3TAL 0)

16,111,911 15,M,110 41,4 21,305 III 7,414

IL 1,511,213 4,110,112 54,7 1,001 1,554 111

n 9,131,190 11461,111 15,1 2,041 120 111

CA 5,019,444 2,2441094 44,1 915 11304 111

1? 5,925,104 011,404 21,1 2,919 411 1,111

01 2,654,121 3,156,102 11,2 26101 112 714

(4) INDICATE1 KISSING DATA, PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED

It.worn Hut reitMli sronn lir 11,511

70RIAlt nil 011111Olvn iemair.vew room rillimiswwp 0 i4 lo.A

3 ti

cD



Almon mos 051-10

OUARTENLT 301101 PEPORTs INPLENCITATION 11064153
JTAA.DIELocA1E0 WEINAEAs 0.083184 60A075

7-01-14 THAnoco 4-15-e5
TITLE m-cp.sxvin

OSLIGATIONAL 01118001112 % Of CIPie0ITUNE3 % Of
AUTHEINIIT ALLOT ALLOT COST

TOTAL PER
3ENVE0 EEEEE 0

COPMENT
ENROLLen

NC 1.102.1115 5,710.175 /3.2 2.475 150 4.1111

SC 5.550,818 1.014.111 54.5 5,125 511 7,710

TN 7,770,357. 2,153.8113 77.7 2.275 947 851

NEGIONAL TOTAL 04
52.011.12 12.802.712 43.4 211.511 71112 12,044

IL 11.114.542 11,714.151 11.3 14.719 704 7,731

IN 11.810.711 6.304,251 40.0 7.753 113 2,341

NI 25.174,11111 14,132,854 50.7 2.410 1.117 3,073

MN 5,975.541 2,742,511 44.1 4.741 570 1.301

OH 21.870.307 10,114,850 41.7 11,523 815-, 3,703

NI 1.514,511 5,001,811 74.0 5,852 1118 1,911

NEGIONAL TOTAL OS
91.811.54S 50.144,714 51.4 52,745 951 20,085

Am 1.180.4i4 1.755.157 11,5 3,851 125 to's:A

141 INDICAT13 NISSING DATA. P11111005 PEN100 010A 301.5112:,10
1,-NASEn 00 CosTi0410 51:4180 or 41.044
21-02510 ON PHOJVCTrO VNII-Or../VAH COMNYNT tHROLLHENT OF 40,700

9



wErukT 9nt us9-1T

OuARTEELT STATuS REPURTI IMPLEAENTATIOR PROGRESS
JTPA-DISLOCATE0 RIIRAPRs FT83/84 ORANTS

7-01-114 THROUGH 6-30-85
TITLE III-CoNNINEn

nsLic9TIO69L
AuTon4171

364600606 9 or
ALLOT

carcnnITuRca I OF
ALLOT

TOTAL
SERVE0

cnsT
PER

SERVEO

CURRENT
ENROLLE0

LA 4.960,02) 1,829,712 )6.9 653 2.402 182

RN 2.42).121 757,614 )1.) 582 1.302 255

nu, 2.000.709 1.095.677 54.6 2.366 791 445

Tx 16.045.564 8.2)9,654 51.3 6,420 3.283 2,163

REGIONAL TOTAL 06 CD
28.610.051 13,176,814 46.1 12,900 1,021 4,932 26-

Ix 2,564,245 1.707,114 66.6 3.230 529 809

AS 2,1192,075 1,063,912 37.5 1,498 724 504

NO 1.696,939 1002,009 81.2 6.650 491 90%

NE 943,309 1175,117 92.6 961 911- 911

REGIONAL TOTAL 07
10,096,566 6,668,152 66.0 12,319 540 2.322

CD 3,070.622 622,117 20.) 578 1.076 330

147 1.676,676 417,280 54,0 1.952 470 II)

11 1601C9TE2 R153160 DATA, pREvinuS PERIM) OATA 31105711,1TV°
1/-61516 ON COOT/ON)? 3161,V0 or 81.546
,I-1.64v... nu n.nivesn s ..... ..,is..vs...o. r......1. ,...n.......r ,Is. ... ,uo



REPORT on. 056-11

OUARTERLT STATUS REPORT. !RIMER.: TTTTT OR PROGRESS
J1pAoDISLOCATED WORKERS FY111/64 GRANTS

7-01-94 THROUGH 6.10-95
TITLE IIT-CORKINED

06LIGATIuNAL DRAWDOrus % Or EXPENDITURES % or
AUTKORITY ALLOT ALLOT COST

TOTAL PER
SERVED SERVED

CuRRENT
ENROLLED

ND 104.862 217,171 71.5 102 1.197 49

SD 170.911 240.497 64.9 350 697 191

UT 6.560.125 1.153.4011 20.6, 1.501 056 675

NT 103.460 142.002 46.9 67 20119 26

REGIONAL TOTAL 011
12.2114.663 3.493.217 20.4 4.710 742 1.3114

AZ 3.9/3.559 2.964.340 75.4 3.7117 7113 ,007

C6 34.296.191 15.223.1.2 44.4 9.635 1.723 2.955

m. 526.759 303.923 57.7 934 325 213

NV 1.2011.217 659.609 54.5 1.177 419 113

Ai 17.090 0 .0 0

GU 620.692 0 .0 0 0

Co 15.769 0 .0 0

(.1 INDICATES HISSING DATA, PREvInuS PERIOD DAT SUBSTITuTrn
1/MAIIVO UR CflsTruNIT SrMVEO O) 91.546
2/-869.11 no pmuirrivn ERnonv...-AN cuporm. rN1,11.1.orRz nr 411.711

9/



REPORT NO: 020-14

OuARTERLY STATUS REPORT* IPPLENENTATI114 PROGRESS
JTPA-OISLOEATFO 4080F05 F081,94 GRAwTS

7-01-14 TWROuGH 6-10-05
TITLE TIT-00.014Ft

OBLTGATInNAL ORANDOwNS OF E0PENDITURE4 % OF
AUTNORITT ALLOT ALLO1 COST CUPPENT

TOTAL PER EwROLLED
SERVE', SERvEn

TT 161.079 .0 0 0

REGIONAL TOTAL 00
40.107.475 19.149.921 46.9 14.913 1.282 4084

AR 1,061.075 284.286 26.9 329 864 303

00 1.514.049 740.261 30.2 615 1.197 182

6.145.701 2.526.268 51.3. 2.763 1.775 410

11.176.060 4022.446 51.6 6.946 612 s46

PEGTONAL TOTAL 10

NATIONAL

17.756.473

TOTAL

8.893.261 50.0 10.673 0, 2.795

343.467.491 99.741.297 29.0 158.963.410 46.2 177.691 895 64.055

(9) INDICATES NISSING DATA. PREVIOUS PERIOD DATA SUPSTITuTED
11-868r0 Dm COST/UNIT SERVED Dr 82.546
21-863110 DA PROJECTED ENDrir-TEAR CURRENT ENROLLMENT Of 48.700

1



400001 101 031111

00ARTC0LT 521214 r2005000 IMPLE0ENTA1101 001160C13
J174-P0060005 FON ADULTS AA:, 1011711 77 1914 GPANTS

7-01-14 2000000 1..10.05
TITLE 114

0AL064710vAL 0111400ro5
570000771

nc 1,042.011

Po 11017.021

P A 124.614,011

vA 11,141021

WV 210750110

O 11670576. TOTAL 01
210051.114

AL 91,754021

FL 11,900.474

GA 41.121.10)

Xi 52,140.104

U I 12.033.103

o Or ExPeNDITURE, or

ALLOT WAIT Cns7
00757. 0(0
060060 inev(o

5.121.141 70.0 2.461 2,700

11,040.144 30.3 17000 1.111

74,471,711 11.1. 01.191 104)

21,711041 69.7 17.307 1011

14,4100)7 57.1 7.271 2.005

143.260.170 60.1 07.011 1.643

17,101.0)7 10.4 24.110 1.003

33,026,118 30.6 23.002 2,215

16.126:270 51.1 11,171 1.10.

28,401.181 54.1 77,401 1,711

70023002 0.1 17.130 1.111

c0APrmT
TmAOLLC0

11

3,102

10,412

14,261

2.056

16,014

1,116

4.011

4./16

0.1164

3.417

mc 31,009,411 11.320.11141 31.1 27034 1033 4,020

S C 14,741,441 14,074,517 45.5 20,194 1,180 1,141

1,1 T601061C1 0133146 0171, F06570013 P60000 0474 301 !!!!! 0TED
1/.143E0 nw C051Y0mIT 3600(0 nr 11.040
II-Oa3t-0 Om 000J6TICO (00-0r-ICAR 60 OOOOO 6000 CCCCCC Of 201.700

1



AirpnoT ut 02n-vil

nALICATIONAL ORANDOwAS
AUTHORITY

OU AAAAAAA 310103 PEPOPTI INPLPIPPN1A1l PPOORE33
JTPA.PROGRAPS ION 000LT3 Awn ToOTN ri 1404 000073

7-n1.64 20005C" 0-33-e3
Tr/LE !IA

s Or ElVENDITOPES % nr
ALLOT ALLOT COST

TOTAL NEN
srAren ZPPVfl

CU PPPPP
ENNOLLE0

To 14.531.767 32.131.172 49.7 21.694 1,231 7,291

NEGIONAL TOTAL 04
440.415.424 252.503.173 57.3 174,340 1,408 47,414

IL 131.706.714 70,347,147 13.4 49,707 1.416 19,693

I6 01.563.172 37,182,420 60.4 27,022 1.376 4,003

NI 133.472.044 711,094.006 511.3. 52.246 1.495 16.336

88 32,134,211 21,266.772 64.8 21.7)5 970 1,050

bm 136,545.310 73,247041 53.1 54064 1,370 11067

81 50014.144 22,631.113! 61.0 24,064 1.151 7,1111

PECI660L TOTAL OS
547.675.470 315,640,174 57.7 234.743 1,346 72,240

AP 23,101.416 12,466,302 58.1 14,141 703 4,006

LA 52.213016 21.757,543 43,5 10.432 1,461 3,513

68 13,643.1120 6,276,381 66.5 6.015 1,341 1,410

CA 13,311.406 13022.226 66.7 11.410 471 3,045
(N) INDICATES $4133IN6 DATA, PPPPP OUS 618100 DATA 30632110210
1/-6A31n no co52/0.112 218010 nf 61044
2/.11A2C0 ON ROJEETED rmo-nr-vrAP EUANEMT ENROLLMENT Of 363,700



mernAT ono 030-011

OU PPPPP LI STATUS PEPOATt ImPLEM( TTTTT 04 PPOCMOISS
1TPA-PPOC4443 004 ADULT) 440 111.,TM IT 1414 C TTTTT

1.41-04 THROUGH 6-30-45
TITLE III

001.101171011L O0t.:0mma 4 Or TTTTT ATTUNES S OP
AUTOOPIIT ALLOT ALLOT COST

I0TAL PER
MEnurn meATCO

CU TTTTT
rmAni.Lfn

Ti 114.440.440 70,467,621 54.2 43,203 1,641 12,741

41(10mAL I0100. 06
274.773,400 130,442.12) 37.0 44,721 1.322 27,404

IA 27.650,224 15.720.346 56.4 11,324 1.244 3.445

PS 15044.134 7,420,253 52.3 7,592 1.443 2,545

mn 44.t06.400 26,231.464 54.5. 14,266 1,362 4,132

OIC 4.504.447 6.111,357 71.4 4.776 1.240 1,604

PECIONAL TOTAL 07
45.410.444 55,403.445 54.7 42.462 TTTTT 12.316

Co 73,244.530 14.337.440 61.7. 12,47/ 4.104 3.450

114 7.711.134 4003,377 44.4 3.147 1.594 460

MD 6,076,743 3.757.433 111.6 2,454 1.574 432

40 6.3660111 2.992,366 47.0 3,270 411 1,075

UT 10.757.776 7.222.504 47.1 6,307 1.145 1,773

mT 7.024,362 3.044,593 43.0 33333 1.690 733

.41 ImpleaTtil 4157141 OATA, PPPPP 0113 PERIOD DATA SUBSTITUTED
It0a344 pm cosT/umlI SEPTE0 nr 41.909
3/.1114/0 Om 000JCC110 C140-nr-ICAO CU PPPPP EPOOLLNENT OP 341,700

l 0 3



REfuRT 691 051-911

OU1RTERLT STATUS REPORTS IMPL TTTTTTTT Om PROGRESS
JTPA.PROGRANS FOR AOULTAI ARO YOUTH FT 1984 G TTTTT

7-01.86 THROUGH 6-30.85
TITLE IIA
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Mr. NIELSON. Also, I share a concern of Iowa's that I think is jus-
tified. Apparently they have utilized their funds quite well, while
other States have decided not to use them. Therefore, OMB is cut-
ting back the whole program and thereby hurting the programs of
States that are able to use it.

I don't think that is very logical or very fair. It may be that
States like California have other resources and don't need all of
their title III money. But the Midwestern States do have problems.
They have used the funds correctly. Don't you think it should
depend o n how well each State has used its funds rather than have
an across-the-board cutback based on the overall carry-over totals?

Mr. ROMERO. If Iowa continues and it does have a substantial
problem, and if it continues to have a substantial problem, there is
always the possibility of sub, itting proposals to the Secretary for
the use of the discretionary funds.

Mr. NIELSON. I agree with that but the other point is, should the
budget cutback be dependent on how it is used nationally or should
it be based on what the different States are able to do?

Several people made the statement, Mr. Broich, Mr. Smith, Iowa
should not be penalized for other States' inaction.

Mr. ROMERO. My own personal judgment is that the Secretary
ought to have the flexibility to, and discretion to target the funds
where the needs are.

Mr. NIELSON. I appreciate that point of view, because I think
that is very important.

The last question: States are going to be penalized for carrying
over money if they have a surplus. Don't you think this practice
encourages the States to target and spend the title III money too
quickly? Is there a possibility of a spend-or-lose-it problem? Is there
not some way to evaluate how well they use it?

Mr. ROMERO. Exactly.
Mr. NIELSON. What you get for the dollar, rather than how much

you spend. It would help Iowa, I think it should depend on what is
accomplished, don't you?

Mr. ROMERO. Yes, indeed, sir. I might add that we encourage
training and retraining for dislocated workers in general.

The record shows that the predominant service provided dislocat-
ed workers at this point in time is job search assistance as opposed
to on-the-job training and classroom training, and part of the ex-
penditure problem I think relates to that, relates to the low-cost
services being provided dislocated workers in some States.

Mr. NIELSON. It has been estimated that only 4 to 5 percent of
the people who might be eligible for JTFA actually receive help.
For various reasons, they don't apply for it or they miss out be-
cause of a technicality.

If only 4 or 5 percent utilization is correct, how can you justify a
55 percent cut in the total program?

Mr. ROMERO. I can't answer that.
Mr. NIELSON. IS it because we have not sold the need to the ad-

ministration or is it because the funds have not been spent wisely?
Or is it because we don't think we need retraining or that the econ-
omy is strong enough now so that we don't need JTPA such as we
did 2 years ago?

1 1 ,
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Mr. ROMERO. The answer we have provided in the past, and I will
offer it again, is that it is our hope that improvement in the econo-
my, growth in the economy will give rise to more jobs, which then
will provide--

Mr. NIELSON. So you will take category D?
Mr. ROMERO. That is right.
Mr. NIELSON. We don't need it as much as we needed it in 1982.
I think that is probably true, but I don't think that is true in the

Midwest. I don't think that is true in the agriculture sector, which
is the problem we are concerned about here.

I want to first of all congratulate Congressman Lightfoot again
for suggesting we talk about it in an agriculture setting because I
believe JTPA was not set up, in your own words, with that in
mind.

Mr. ROMERO. Right.
Mr. NIELSON. JTPA has shown flexibility. I would like to see itcommunicated to all the agricultural communities, that it is avail-able, that you are a slow part of the economy and that this can

help you to get back on your feet, and I would like to see you
moCify your regulations and maybe suggest changes in legislation
to better target it to the agriculture worker.

Thank you very much.
Mr. FRANK. Mr. Lightfoot has more questions, but briefly let mecomment first.
Dr. Romero, I appreciate you have an official role here and I

admire the care with which you respond to the questions. We un-
derstand your role here.

I will venture a suggestion as to why this has noL been widely
publicized and partly the gentleman from Utah brought us to that
point, the administration is trying to cut back on these kinds of
programs and the last thing they want is to make people who arenot using the program aware of the program. They don't want todrum up the demand when they have every intention of cuttingback the supply.

I think that is why we were not going to get from the adminis-
tration the active kind of publicity.

I think one of the things we can do is to let our farmers know
that this is available.

Mr. NIELSON. I am not suggesting we hire people to go out andrecruit. I in simply saying, make it generally available, make surethe States know that it is available.
Mr. FRANK. I understand; yes.
Mr. NIELSON. Let the States disseminate the existing program.
Mr. FRANK. I understand. I don't think the administration is

being forthcoming in letting the States know that this is available.
I am not saying you go out and do this. You pinpointed the prob-lem. People are not aware that they are or would be eligible. We

want to be careful not to stir up any false hopes.
The administration officials should be out to let the people knowwhat is available.
Second, I think this has been a current theme in some of our dis-cussions with the trade adjustment assistance as well, that it issaid that a growing economy is very important and we ought to be

working for that increase in GNP, but I think Dr. Romero accu-
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rately outlined this, what he conveyed was the administration's po-
sition that with the overall growth of the economy, many of these
programs will not be necessary.

But overall grow th, although a necessary condition for people to
be reemployed, it is not by itself a sufficient condition. That is, if
we have economic growth. Present circumstances show that to be
not true.

If we have people coming into the job market but there is no in-
dustry c ming in, you won't have job opportunities for the people.
But simply creation of job opportunities, when we talk about
people who are at the age of 50 and find they are out of business,
they are feeling psychologically guilty about itthey shouldn't be-
cause it is not their faultthey have one set of skills and they
don't know they are transferrable. They may not be automatically
transferrable, but they may be with help.

This is a program that is useful, and it doesn't remove the need
for this program to have just growth in the economy.

I have one question for Dr. Romero. We have been talking about
the question of the ability to serve and appropriation levels. If the
Gramm-Rudman proposal currently pending in Congress were to go
through, what would the effect of that be on your service?

Mr. ROMERO. It would have some--
Mr. FRANK. Positive or negative? Use that. Up or down. We will

use neutral terms.
Would you be able to help fewer or more people?
Mr. ROMERO. I would say fewer people.
Mr. FRANK. Thank you.
Mr. Lightfoot.
Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Just one question, Mr. Chairman, something that

might possibly be of value to us out here. In other words, $15 mil-
lion was set aside for copper and I think $5 million for the footware
industry. Has the Secretary considered doing that for agriculture
as an industry, and if not, why not?

Mr. ROMERO. As you know, we have a task force on plant clo-
sures, we have set aside discretionary account funds for steel,
footware, et cetera.

And the subject Mr. Smith raised with respect to a task force is
the first step in discussing that proposition and hopefully reaching
agreement on whether or not such a step would be desirable in set-
ting aside dollars.

But the answer is no, the Secretary has not identified funds spe-
cifically for dislocated farmers out of the discretionary account at
this time.

Mr. LIGHTFOOT. Thank you, gentlemen, very much.
Mr. Chairman, I think we are into an area that is new to a great

degree, for example, identifying who these people are. We do have
a program that works, as our two witnesses testified this morning,
and I know of an instance up in Mr. Woodward's district where
there are 12 or 13 people working under the program and have
become employed. Several have advanced and have moved to advi-
sory positions within the company they are working for.

It is something I think we could use and use well in our part of
the country. I would hope the fact that we are dealing with a new

11
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set of circumstances that it doesn't scare people off and they in-
stead begin to move forward.

As both Mr. Frank and Mr. Nielson suggested, we have some-
thing that can help. It works, and like many of the programs that
have been enacted, we would hope it is only temporary in nature so
that we move to the point where in the future we don't need it.

That is why we are all here today anyway.
I appreciate your coming to Iowa to hold this hearing.
Mr. FRANK. I want to thank the participants. It has been very

useful.
I would reiterate the point Mr. Lightfoot began with, the record

will remain open and if you have statements you can submit them
to Mr. Lightfoot or Senator Harkins office, or any of the delega-
tions from Iowa and we will receive the statements and you can in
that way supplement the record.

My sense is, as I listen to this, is that thisinbcomrnittee will
write a report based on the subject making spe-cifi6 suggestions of
how we can further improve this program.

Thank you all very much.
The hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12 noon, the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-

vene subject to the call of the Chair.]

11 b



APPENDIX

MATERIAL SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD

10W11.01.1.1.1.1.
131111 IN 11 111111.1.1 C11110.111

NWTH GONG latS

Congress of the 'United F,--tates
ti011sc Of Ikcprcscntatim

EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE
OF THE

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
AVOURN HOUSE OFFICE MUNRO. ROOM 1,34.-A

WASHINGTON. DC 20515

October 21, 1985

Mr. Robert T. Jones
Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary
of Labor for Employment and Training

U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20210

Dear Mr. Jones:

On Friday morning, November 15, 1985, the Employment
and Housing Subcommittee will hold a field hearing to examine
"The Job Training Partnership Act and the Farmers." This hear-
ing will take place at 9:3D a.m. at Iowa Western Community
College in Council Bluffs, Iowa.

The Subcommittee requests that you or another responsihle
agency official appear before us at this hearing to explain the
Labor Department's positidh.concerning the Job Training Partner-
ship Act and farmers. Please discuss how the Labor Department
has responded to problems encountered by farm states in admini-
stering the JTPA to meet the needs of farmers. Please also
comment on how the JTPA can be tailored, either administratively
or legislatively, to better accommodate the needs of farmers.

While your written testimony may be of any length, please
limit your oral presentation to a ten minute summary. 25 copies
of your prepared statement should be received by the Subcommittee
no later than noon, Tuesday, November 12.

In connection with this hearing, we ask that you supply the
Subcommittee with the following information by Fr-1day, November 8:

Copies of any rules, policy guidelines,
or interpretative memoranda prepared by
the Labor Department relating to the
applicability of Title III of the JTPA
to farmers;

(113)
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Mr. Robert T. Jones
Pige 2

- A list showing each grant rPquest made
in FY 1985 and FY 1986 to date for dis-
cretionary JTPA Title III funds to be
used for employment and training assis-
tance for farmers; who made the request;
the amount requested; and the amount
granted by the Secretary;

- For FY 1985, a breakdown by industry or
type of product showing how JTPA Title III
discretionary funds for dislocated workers
were distributed by the Secretary.

Should you have any questions, please contact Stuart
Weisberg, the Subcommittee Staff Director, at 225-6751.

[hank you for your cooperation.

BARNEY FRANK
Chairman
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U.S. Department of Labor

.. D C :T210

Nov - 7 1935

The Honorable Barney Frank
Chairman
Subcommittee on Employment and Housing
Committee on Government Operations
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dea' Mr. Chairman:

T1 - is in response to your letter of OctobPr 21, requesting
information on Title III of the JTPA in connection with the
Subcommittee's upcoming field hearing on "The Joh Training
Partnership Act and the Farmers." The information requested
is enclosed.

A word of clarification is needed regarding the time frames in
the listings of Title III national reserve projects. In accor-
dance with the requirements of the Act, all JTPA programs are
now forward-funded with the funds provided in the annual appro-
priation becoming available the following July 1 on a program-
year basis. Data on farm industry projects are provided from
the inception of the program. The initial JTPA Program Year
(PY) began July 1, 1984. Therefore, you will note the transi-
tion from fiscal to PY in that listing. The State of Iowa did
not submit any proposals for Title III national reserve fundc in
PY 1984.

I hope that this information will be useful to you. Please
let me know if I can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

ing D
e reta

. JONES
puty Assistant
of Labor

Enclosures
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Employment and Training Administration

Washington, D.C. 20213

CLASSir !CRT ION

JTPA
COR RESPO, LNC E Sy mOOL

TDC

giNil 26, 1985

TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION NOTICE NO. 43-84

TO ALL STA:E JTPA LIAISONS

FROM G57
FRANK C. CASILLAS ?r;_.
Assistant Secretar of Labor

SUBJECT Service to Workers Dislocated from
Farms under Title III of the Job Training
Partnership Act (JTPA)

7 Purpose. To clarify the policy of the Employment
and Training Administration (ETA) regarding
the provision of training and related services
to workers dislocated from farms and other
dislocated workers who have been dependent
on the agricultural economy.

, 2. Background. Numerous inquiries have been received
concerning the que,tion of whether or not workers
dislocated from farms are eligible to participate
in dislocated worker programs under Title III
of JTPA. Some States have made the determination /

that this is a proper interpretation of the
Act, while others have not done so and some
are unclear as to whether or not they have
the authority to interpret the Act in this
vay.

Neir.her the Act nor its legislative history
specifically address the inclusion of workers
dislocated from farms under Title III of JTPA.
Recently, however, there has been a certain
amount of Congressional interest indicating
a desire to include this group under the broad
definition of "dislocated workers" fOund in

-

RESC 1SSIONS EXPIRAT ION DATE
June 30, 1986

DMT R MOTION

119
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3. Policy. ETA's policy is that States may interpret
the statute, pursuant to the Governor/Secretary
Agreement and 20 CFR 627.1, which states that
". . guidelines, tnterpretations and definitions
adopted by the Governor shall, to the extent that
they are consistent with the Act and applicable rules
and regulaLions, be accepted by the Secretary."

Section 302(a) of JTPA authorizes States ". . . to
establish procedures to identify substantial groups
of eligible individuals . . ." Three categories
of groups are enumerated; the third of these focuses
on persons who . . are long-term unemployed and
have limited opportunities for employment or reemployment
in the same or a similar occupation in the area in
which such individuals reside . . ." It is ETA's
position that a State interpretation of these provisions
to apply to workers dislocated from farns and others
dependent on the agricultural economy would not be
inconsistent with the Act and applicable rules and
regulations.

4. Inquiries. Questions on this issue may be addressed
co Robert N. Colombo at (202) 376-6093.
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
EmpIcyr.unt and Traiting

Wa.chingtort, D.C. 20213

CL...kasIFICATI

JTPA.
CORAE37CNCENCE
TDC
CATE
july 8. 1985

TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION NOTICE NO. 3-85

TO : ALL STATE JTPA LIAIsops AND STATE WAGNER-PEYSER
ADMINISTERING AGENCT')'-'

FROM

SUBJECT :

ROBERTS T. JONE
Acting Deputy A4tnt Secretary of Labor

Application Proced/res for Program Year
1985 Dislocated Worker Funds Reserved
by the Secuetary

1. Purnose. To transmit to State JTDA liaisons applica-
tion procedures for Program Year 1985 dislocateC workeL
projects to be supported with funds reserved pursuant to
Section 301(a) of the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA).

2. Reference. Training and Employment Information Notice
(TEIN) No. 43-84.

3. Backcround. Funds available for Title III of JTPA for
Program Year 1985 total $222.5 million. Of this amount,
$167.25 million has been allotted by formula, as prescribed
in Section 301(b) of the Act, and $55...:5 million has been
reserved to be used pursuant to Section 3C1(c) of the Act.

Pursuant to Section 301(c), the funds reserved by the
Secretary must be used to serve individuals who are
affected by mass layoffs, natural disasters, Federal
Government actions, or who reside in areas of high
unemployment or federally designated enterprise zones.
Since these funds are approcriated under Title III of
JTPA, the projects operated with these funds are subject
to the provisions of Title III of the Act and Federal
regulationS promulgated under the Act.

Generally funds will be distributed as discussed in
this TEIN. However, the Secretary reserves the right
to distribute some of these funds taking into considera-
tion special circumstances and unicue needs that may
arise throughout the course of the program year.

AZSCIS.SIONS EXPIRATIQN CATE

Jure 30, 3.986

OISTRIBUTION

1 21



119

4. Application Procedures. To apply for Section 301(a)
funds, aE.plications for individual projects should follow
guidelines contained in Attachment X. There is no require-
ment for matching these funds. States are encouraged to
apply additional factors consistent with these application
guidelines; e.g., conformity with the Governor's coordination
criteria, documentation of fiscal responsibility, etc.
Proposals should be carefully reviewed by the State prior
to submittal to the Department of Labor, to ensure that
the applicazion guidelines have been met. Applications
should be sent by certified mai;, return receipt requested,
to the addrcss contained in Attachment I.

S. State Assurance. /n the letter transmitting the proposal,
the following paragraph should be included:

"If the proposed project is funded, any Title III funds
awarded from funds reserved by the Secretary will be admini-
stered in general accordance with the proposal submitted and
consistent with the letter signed by the Department of Labor
Grant Officer accompanying the grant award."

project proposals not accompanied by this required assurnce
will not be funded.

6. Other Information. Proposals will be accepted for the
1985 Program Yaar beginning with the date of publication of
this Information Notice. The funds that have been reserved
by tne Secretary will be managed so as to maintain availability
throughout the Program Year, thereby assuring the Secretary's
ability to respond as contemplated in Section 301(c) of the

Act.

The length of the proposals should be limited; a succinct
proposal covering the pertinent areas in sufficient detail
can be accomplished in 10 pages. Even the most complex and
extensive program strategies should be presented in 20 pages

or less.

The proposals should describe in some degree of detail
the severity of need of a particular geographic location
for the additional funds; specific clientele to be served,
industries impacted and occupations lost, and the types
of services to be provided, including the specific occupations
for which training will be provided. Whenever possible,
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information on where jobs will be obtained should also
be included. Projects should generally cover no more than
I year, but may extend for a longer period of time it
sufficient justification is provided. proposals must also
provide a budget prepared with some degre- of detail, with
line items grouped under the "Training," NAdministration,"
and °Participant Support" cost categories.

All applications must be submitted by the State. Applicatons
not developed directly by the State agency administering
JTPA shoule, be reviewed by thr, appropriate service delivery
arms administrative entity, Priyste Industry Council, and
chief elected officials(s). Whem a multi-State project
is proposed, one State must serve as the applicanti however,
the Governors of each of the States to be involved in the
project must provide endorsements to indicate review of
the proposal.

7. IdentIfication cf Dislocated Workers. States are
authorized to iiiiErish procedures to identify substantial
groups of dislocated workers pursuant to Section 302 of
the Act. TEIN Nc 43-84 clarified that workers dislocated
from farms and other dislocftted workers dependent on the
agricultural economy may be eligible to participate in
dislocated worker programs under Title III of JTPA.

In developing project applications, there should be coordination
with the State employment security agency to insure that
funds are not dire _d to the name applicant group(s) currently
being served with ..,:tde Adjustment Asnistance (TAA) program
funds unless there are unmet needs not being addressed
through that funding source. If training, job search or
relocation opportunities are available to the applicant
group(s) under the TAA program, the circumstances for requesting
JTPA funds for the same applicant group must be explained.

8. Proposal Review. Proposals will be reviewed and approved
or rejected based upon the applieLtion of the selection
criteria contained in Attachment III. Proposals will be
considered on a timely basis, and a response may be expected
within 60 days o! the Department's receipt of the proposal.
The review panel will meet no leus frequently than once
a month, and more freauently in cases of pressing need.
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Generally, the Department will not be inclined to refunc.
a proposal approved during a previous finding cycle.
Additionally, projects previously funded by the State with
formula-allotted monies will generally not receive favorable
consideration.

9. Funding Mechanism. For Program Year 1985, the Department
will issue a Notice or Obligation (N00) to the State and
an allotment supplement will be made to the State's Title
III formula-allotted grant, pursuant to the Governor/Secretary
Agreement. Th proposal will not be considered as a work
statement for the allotment of funds; rather, a letter
containing the general specifications expected as a condition
of the grant award will accompany the NOO, including the
ffective date for use of the funds. This letter and the
State assurance discussed in Item f6 above will govern
the operation of the project. This is the same procedure
as wars used for Program Year 1984 projects.

10. Project Oversight. The State will be responsible
for monitoring each project to ensure its compliance with
the Act and the regulations. As in the case of other compliance
matters, the Department will review the State's administration
of these monies.

11. Inquiries. Should you have any questions concerning
these procedures, assistance may be obtained by calling
Robert N. Colombo, Director, Office of Employment and Training
Programs, at (202) 376-6093.

12. Attachments

I. Application Guidelines for .7TPA Dislocated
Worker Programs Supported by Funds Reserved
by the S,.Iretary

II. Selection Criteria for Dislocated Worker
Programs Supported by Funds Reserved by the Secretary
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Attachmenc

APPLICATION GUIDELINES FOR

.709 TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT (JTPA) DIELCCATED

WORKER P:t0ORAMS SUPPORTED BY FUNDS

RESERVED BY THE SECRE=Y

Backaround and Purmose

Pursuant to Eccticn 301(al, the SecretAry of Labor may reserve

up to 25 percent of the funds appropriated by Congress for

dislocated worker programs authorized under Title I/I of JTPA.

These funds are to be awarded to States to provide training,

retraining, job search assistance, placement, relocation assistance

and other aid to individuals affected by mass layoffs, natural

disasters, Federal Government actions or who reside in areas of

high'unemployment or designated enterprise zones, in accordance

with Section 301(c). These circumstances must be sufficiently

severe so that (1) the needs cannot be met by other JTPA programs

or other State and local programs, and (2) substantial numbers

of individuals concentrated in a labor market area or industry

are affected. In accordance with the Act and the regulations

promulgated under the Act, the Secretary has established the

following application procedures and selection criteria for

Program Year 1985 Title III Dislocated Worker Programs to be

supported with funds reserved by the Secretary pursuant to

Section 301(a) of the Act. Generally funds will distributed in

accordance with the following criteria. However, the Secretary

reserves the right to distribute some of these funds taking into

consideration special circumstances and unique needs that may arise

throughout the course of the Program Year.
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Abelieation Procedures

To apply for JTPA Title III funds reserved by the Secretary,

the State should submit applications, in triplicate, for

individual projects to the U.S. Department of Labor at the

following address:

Employment and Training Administration
Grant Officer
Dislocated Worker Program
Room 5002
601 D Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20213

A copy of each application.should be submitted at the same time

to the appropriate regional office.

Applications sent to the Grant Officer should be sent by

certified mail, return receipt requested. All applications,

including those initiated by the proposed project operator and

submiited through the State, should follow the guidelines contained

in this announcement. All projects funded are subject to the

, provisions of.the Act and the regulations.

In the letter transmitting the proposal, the following paragraoh

should be included:

'If the proposed project is funded, any Title /II funds awarded

from those reserved by the Secretary will be administered in ger al
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acrardance with the proposal submitted and consistent vith

the letter signed by the Department of Labor Grant Officer

accompanying the grant award.*

No proposals will be considered for funding, if this paracraph

is not provided.

Time Frames: Applications for funding may be submitted at any

time beginning with the issuance of this document. The funds

that have been reserved by the Secretary will be manaced so as

to mz;intain availability throughout the program year, thereby

assuring the Secretary's ability to respond as contemplated

in Section 301(c) of the Act.

Period of Performance: Applications should cover a period of

time generally not to exceed I year. Applications for periods

in excess of 1 year may be submitted with supporting information.

Application Components: Applications should, as applicable,

address the points listed below.

1. Describe the need for funding the project and explain

how this need was determined. The description should

include (a) the unemployment rate for the area to be
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served, (b) the unemployment rate for the State, (c)

the number of individuals affected, ;:.!) tne occupations

or industries affected, and (e) the number of eligible

individuals to participate in the program. While each

of these elements is important, specific emphasis

should he placed on defining the need precisely;

i.e., in terms of specific plants, occupations or

geographic areas.

2. Explain why the need cannot be met by existing

Federal, State and local resources, including the

State's 3TPA Title II/ formula-allotted funds and

Trade Adjustment Assistance Program funds provided

to the State employment security agency.

3. Discuss how the proposed project relates to overall

activities planned in the State, and explain how

the proposed project is related to formula-funded

dislocated worker program activities.

4. Identify the occupations in which participants will

be trained or retrained and provide the types and

length of training for each occupation. Explain how

1 2 8
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the totential for placements in those occupational areas

was determined, including information regarding specific

employers or industries that have demands fo: workers

in those occupational areas.

5. Describe activities to be conducted, including:

a. a description of the training activities

and supportive services to be provided;

b. a description of job search assistance, counseling,

job development and placement services and how

these services will be coordinated with training

activities;

c. the number of eligible participants to be served

in each activity; and

d. the cot.- s associated with each of these activities.

Activities authorized are discussed in Title III of

the Act and the regulations promulgated pursuant

to the Act.

1 2
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6. Describe the projected results expected !rom each

of the activities to be conducted, ir.cluding the

estimated number of participants to he placed in

unsubsidized employment, the cost per participant,

the cost per placement, and the planned

placement rate.

7. Provide a description of the fiscal and management

capabilities of the entity that will administer the

proposed project.

S. provide a plan for coordination with appropriate

private industry councils (PICs) and chief elected

officials (CE0s), and describe linkages with other

employment and training-related programs, with the

employer community, and, where applicable, labor

organizations. Applications not developed

directly by the State agency administering JTPA

should be reviewed by the appropriate service

delivery area administrative entity, PIC, and CEOs.

9. Include a detailed budget, grouping line items under

training, participant support and administration cost

cacegories. In transmitting the proposal, the Governor

1 3
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ce.--'J'.s that the proposed budge: ccnforms tr tbe cccr;

classiiirations established by the State, a:Id assumes

liability for expenditures pursuant to the budget, if

the grant is awarded, subject to the provisions of

Section 164(e) (2) of the Act. Additionally, the Governor

certifies that matching funds offered, if any, corre-

spond to the definitions promulgated by the Governor

pursuant to Section 629.40 of the JTPA regulations.

10. Provide the name, address and telephone number of

the responsible State official to contact regarding

the proposal. As appropriate, also provide this

information for responsible local officials.
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Attachment

SELECTION CRITERIA FOR

DISLOCATED WORRER PROGRAMS SUPPORTED BY

FUNDS RESERVED BY TSE SECRETARY

Dislocated worker nrogram funds reserved by the Secretary

pursuant to Section 301(a) of JTPA shall be used to serve

individuals who are affected by mass layoffs, natural

disasters, Federal Government actions or who reside in high

unemployment areas or designated enterprise zones, in

accordance with Section 301(c) of the Act. In addition to

meeting these basic conditions, the applications will be

reviewed and evaluated using the following factors:

1. Severity of the cir- of need as described

in the grant applica: %such as the number of

individuals affected, the local and State unemploy-

ment rates compared to the national rate and the

projected short- and long-term effect on

unemployment).

2. Concentration of the eligible individuals

in a particular occupation, plant, industry or

geographic area.

132
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3. Coordination and linkages witn existing Federal,

State or local programs, incl.zding the State's

Title III formula-funded programs.

4. Services to be provided and service mix, to include

specificity of occupations in which retraining will

occur and, to the'extent possible, evidence that

demand for these retrained workers exists in the

training locale.

5. Assurance of project operator's fiscal and program

management capabilities to administer the programs.

6. Cost effectiveness of the plan, e.g., cost per

participant, cost per placement, and cost per

activity. Level of funding dedicated to client

services as opposed to staff support and

administration.
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YEAR STATE
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PYHT OH
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PY01 WA
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